
Coral Springs 
Improvement District 

 
Agenda 

 
August 19, 2019 

Agenda Page 1



Coral Springs Improvement District 

10300 NW 11th Manor, Coral Springs, Florida • Phone: 954.753.0380 • www.csidfl.org 

August 12, 2019 

Board of Supervisors  
Coral Springs Improvement District 

Dear Board Members: 

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement District will 
be held on August 19, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. at the District Offices, 10300 NW 11th Manor, Coral 
Springs, Florida.  Following is the advance agenda for the meeting.   

1. Roll Call
2. Acceptance of the June 17, 2019 Landowners Meeting and Approval of the June 17, 

2019 Regular Meeting
3. Resolution 2019-4, Canvassing and Certifying the Results of the Landowners’ Election
4. Audience Comments
5. Approval of Financial Statements for July 2019
6. Consideration of Permits

A. Permit 2019-2, MCI Metro for the Installation of Fiber Optic Cable Route at Pine Trails 
Park

B. Permit 2019-4, Pillar Consultants for Proposed Development of Multi Family Units at 
NW 94th Avenue

7. Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2020
A. Resolution 2019-6, Adopting the General Fund Budget
B. Resolution 2019-7, Levying Non Ad Valorem Assessments

8. Consideration of Resolution 2019-8, Approving the Proposed Water and Sewer Budget 
and Setting the Public Hearing

9. Consideration of Encroachment Agreement with 8137 NW 2nd Manor
10. Emergency Work by Globaltech

A. Automatic Transfer Switch Evaluation and Installation
B. Emergency Installation of High Service Pumping System

11. Consideration of Work Authorizations
A. Amendment #1 to Work Authorization #149 for HSP Building Valve Replacement for 

an Increase of $34,568
B. Amendment #1 to Work Authorization #152 for Membrane Plant ORP Analyzer for a 

Decrease of $2,000
C. Work Authorization #162 for WTP Well No. 9 Control Panel Replacement for a Total 

Job Price of $96,999
D. Work Authorization #163 for Production Well 5 Re-Development for a Total Cost of

$94,500
12. Consideration Wellfield Maintenance Contract with AMPS, Piggybacking Off of the City of 

Sunrise
13. Consideration of Resolution 2019-9, Adopting Code of Ethics
14. Consideration of Resolution 2019-10, Approving Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement
15. Consideration of agreement with BSI Online for Backflow Program
16. Discussion and Approval of Purchases from Xylem Water Solutions as a Sole Source 

Supplier of Flygt Pumps and Parts for the Drainage Lift Stations

Agenda Page 2



               

Coral Springs Improvement District 

10300 NW 11th Manor, Coral Springs, Florida • Phone: 954.753.0380 • www.csidfl.org 

 
17. Consideration of Purchase of Two Portable Generators from Doosan, Piggybacking Off 

the Florida Sheriffs Association and Florida Association of Counties 
18. Ratification of Water and Sewer Standards 
19. Proposal for ADA Compliant Website 
20. Staff Reports 

A. Manager – Ken Cassel 

• Proposed Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year 2020 
B. Engineer – Rick Olson 
C. Department Reports 

• Operations – Dan Daly 
➢ Utility Billing Work Orders 

• Utilities Update (David McIntosh) 

• Water – Joe Stephens (Report Included) 

• Wastewater – Kenneth Miller (Report Included) 

• Stormwater – Shawn Frankenhauser (Report Included) 

• Field – Curt Dwiggins (Report Included) 

• Maintenance Report – Pedro Vasquez (Report Included) 

• Human Resources – Jan Zilmer  

• Motion to Accept Department Reports 
D. Attorney 

21. Supervisors’ Requests 
22. Adjournment 
 
Any supporting documents not included in the agenda package will be distributed at the 
meeting.  If you have any questions prior to the meeting, please contact me. 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
 

Kenneth Cassel/sd 
District Manager 
 
cc: District Staff   
 Terry Lewis  
 Seth Behn     
 Rick Olson 
 Beverley Servé 
 Stephen Bloom  

Agenda Page 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Second Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 4



MINUTES OF LANDOWNERS’ MEETING 

CORAL SPRINGS 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

 

 The Landowners’ Meeting of the Coral Springs Improvement District was held 

Monday, June 17, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. at the District Office, located at 10300 NW 11th 

Manor, Coral Springs, Florida. 

 
 Present were: 
 
 Dr. Martin Shank 
 Duane Holland 
 Len Okyn 
 Nick St. Cavish 
 Kenneth Cassel 
 Terry Lewis 
 Seth Behn 
 Dan Daly 
 David McIntosh 
 Jan Zilmer 
 Marta Rubio 
 Rick Olson 
 Curt Dwiggins 
 Joe Stephens 
 Shawn Frankenhauser 
 Pedro Vasquez 
 Raquel Holland 
 Sandra Demarco 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS   Call to Order 
 Mr. Cassel called the landowners’ meeting to order. 
 
THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Election of a Chairman for the 

Purpose of Conducting the 
Landowners’ Meeting 

 Mr. Lewis served as Chairman for the purpose of conducting the landowners’ 

meeting.   

 
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Determination of the Number of 

Voting Units Represented 
 Each landowner owns one-quarter of an acre of land. 
 

Agenda Page 5



June 17, 2019 Landowners’ Meeting   Coral Springs Improvement District 

2 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Nominations for the Positions of 
Supervisors (3) 

 The three nominees are as follows: 

 Martin Shank 

 Duane Holland 

 Len Okyn 
 
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Casting of Ballots 
 Ballots were cast. 
 
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Ballot Tabulation 
 Proxies and ballots were just received and shall be tabulated and certified within 

the next week. 

Mr. Cassel being a Notary Public of the State of Florida, administered the Oath of 

Office to Dr. Shank, Mr. Holland and Mr. Okyn; copies of the signed Oaths are attached 

hereto and made a part of the public record. 

 
SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Landowners’ Questions or Comments 
 Hearing no questions or comments from landowners’, the next order of business 

followed. 

 
EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Adjournment 
 There being no further business, 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Dr. Shank, with all 
in favor, the landowners’ meeting was adjourned. 

 

Agenda Page 6



Unapproved Minutes 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

CORAL SPRINGS 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement 

District was held Monday, June 17, 2019, immediately following the landowners’ meeting 

at the District Office, located at 10300 NW 11th Manor, Coral Springs, Florida. 

 
 Present and constituting a quorum were: 

 
 Dr. Martin Shank    President 
 Duane Holland    Vice President 
 Len Okyn     Secretary 
 
 Also present were: 

 
 Kenneth Cassel    District Manager 
 Terry Lewis     District Counsel 
 Seth Behn     Lewis Longman & Associates 
 Dan Daly     Director of Operations 
 David McIntosh    Director of Utilities 
 Jan Zilmer     Human Resources 
 Marta Rubio     District Accountant 
 Rick Olson     District Engineer 
 Curt Dwiggins    Field Department 
 Joe Stephens    Water Department 
 Shawn Frankenhauser   Stormwater Department 
 Pedro Vasquez    Maintenance Department 
 Sandra Demarco    Inframark, LLC 
 Nick St. Cavish    Former Board Member 
 Raquel Holland    Resident 
 
 
 The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the June 

17, 2019 Coral Springs Improvement District’s Board of Supervisors Meeting. 

 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS   Roll Call 
 Mr. Cassel called the meeting to order. 

 Mr. St. Cavish thanked the Board, Mr. Cassel and staff for all their help 

during his time as a Board member. 

Agenda Page 7



June 17, 2019   Coral Springs Improvement District 

2 
Unapproved Minutes 

 Mr. Len Okyn was introduced as the new Board member replacing Mr. St. 

Cavish. 

 Mr. Cassel called the roll, and a quorum was established. 
 
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS  Organizational Matters 

A. Oath of Office for Newly Elected Supervisors 
The Oath of Office was administered during the landowners’ meeting. 
 
B. Resolution 2019-04, Canvassing and Certifying the Results of the 

Landowners’ Election 
The Resolution will be considered at the next meeting, once all ballots and proxies 

are certified. 

 
C. Election of Officers – Resolution 2019-05 

 Mr. Holland nominated Dr. Shank to continue serving as President. 

 Dr. Shank nominated Mr. Holland to continue serving as Vice President. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all 
in favor, Resolution 2019-5 Designating Officers of the 
District, with Dr. Martin Shank to continue serving as 
President, Mr. Duane Holland to continue serving as Vice 
President, Mr. Len Okyn to serve as Secretary, Mr. Stephen 
Bloom to continue serving as Treasurer, Mr. Alan Baldwin and 
Mr. Kenneth Cassel to continue serving as Assistant 
Treasurers, and Mr. Kenneth Cassel and Mr. Dan Daly to 
continue serving as Assistant Secretaries, was adopted. 

 
THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the May 20, 

2019 Meeting 
 Dr. Shank stated each Board member received a copy of the Minutes of the May 

20, 2019 Meeting, and requested any additions, corrections or deletions. 

 There being none, 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all 
in favor, the Minutes of the May 20, 2019 Meeting were 
approved. 

 
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Audience Comments 
 Hearing no comments from the audience, the next order of business followed. 

 

Agenda Page 8



June 17, 2019   Coral Springs Improvement District 

3 
Unapproved Minutes 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Financial Statements for 
May 2019 

 The Board reviewed the financial statements for May 2019. 

 It appears a large amount of the assessments have not been paid. 

 Mr. Okyn was advised to meet with Ms. Rubio regarding budgets. 
 
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Change Order #1 

with Trio Development for an Increase 
of $29,950 

Mr. Dwiggins presented this item for the Board’s review and approval. 

 The valve pit lid needs to be replaced on Lift Station #14. 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all 
in favor, Change Order #1 with Trio Development for an 
increase of $29,950, was approved. 

 
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Financial Statements for 

May 2019 (Continued) 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all 
in favor, the Financial Statements for May 2019 were 
approved. 

 
SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Bulk Chemical 

Contract Renewal for the Water Plant 
(Two Options) 

 Mr. Stephens presented this item for the Board’s review and approval. 

 Some costs increased. 

 They will lock in the price for one year, which will continue into the second 

year if these prices are still available. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all 
in favor, renewal of the bulk chemical contract with Hawkins 
for the water plant was approved, as discussed. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Staff Reports 
A. Manager – Ken Cassel 
Mr. Cassel reminded the Board of the June 25, 2019 special meeting and 

attorney/client session. 

 

Agenda Page 9



June 17, 2019   Coral Springs Improvement District 

4 
Unapproved Minutes 

B. Engineer – Rick Olson 
Mr. Olson reviewed his monthly status report; a copy of which is attached hereto 

and made part of the public record. 

 The subcontractor for Work Authorization #133 chose not to perform four of 

the wells due to the wording of the contract.  The four wells will be taken 

care of at the engineer’s expense. 

 
C. Department Reports 

 Operations – Dan Daly 
 Utility Billing Work Orders 

This item is for information only.  ADA compliance for the website was also 

discussed. 

 Utilities Update (David McIntosh) 
Mr. McIntosh discussed the FASD Conference he recently attended.  He continues 

to respond to requests for information from FEMA for the debris removal. 

 

 Water – Joe Stephens (Report Included) 
A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto 

as part of the public record.  Mr. Stephens attended the 2019 Desalting Association 

Symposium in which CSID won “Membrane Plant of the Year.”  There will be an article in 

the next newsletter.   

 

 Wastewater – Kenneth Miller (Report Included) 
A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto 

as part of the public record. 

 

 Stormwater – Shawn Frankenhauser (Report Included) 
A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto 

as part of the public record.  A resident’s installation of a deck on the canal bank was 

discussed. 

 

 Field – Curt Dwiggins (Report Included) 
A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto 

as part of the public record. 

 

Agenda Page 10



June 17, 2019   Coral Springs Improvement District 

5 
Unapproved Minutes 

 Maintenance Report – Pedro Vasquez (Report Included) 
A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto 

as part of the public record. 

 

 Human Resources – Jan Zilmer 
Mr. Zilmer reported he is looking into health insurance.  The review process will 

commence in September. 

 

 Motion to Accept Department Reports 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all 
in favor, the Department Reports were accepted. 

 
D. Attorney 
Mr. Lewis discussed preliminary rulings regarding ADA issues. 

 
NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Supervisors’ Requests 

 Mr. Holland discussed the plants being able to withstand category three 

hurricanes.  Mr. McIntosh stated Globaltech is working on an updated 

hurricane report. 

 Mr. Okyn commented on the award the District won and congratulated staff. 
 
TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Adjournment 
 There being no further business, 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all 
in favor, the meeting was adjourned at approximately 5:18 
p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Kenneth Cassel     Dr. Martin Shank 
Assistant Secretary     President 

Agenda Page 11



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Third Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 12



RESOLUTION 2019-4 
 
A RESOLUTION CANVASSING AND CERTIFYING THE 
RESULTS OF THE LANDOWNERS ELECTION OF 
SUPERVISORS HELD PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 2004-469 
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5 of Chapter 2004-469, Laws of Florida, a landowners 
meeting is required to be held every four years following the creation of a Special District for the 
purpose of electing three Supervisors to the Board of Supervisors of the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, following proper publication of notice thereof, such landowners meeting was 
held June 17, 2019, at which the below recited persons were duly elected by virtue of the votes 
cast in his favor; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this resolution canvasses the votes, and declares and certifies the results of 
said election; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT; 
 

 1.  The following persons are found, certified, and declared to have been duly elected as 
a Supervisor of and for the District, having been elected by the votes cast in his favor as shown, 
to wit: 
 
 Martin Shank  238     Votes 

 Nick St. Cavish  238     Votes 

 Len Okyn   238     Votes 

 
2.  In accordance with said statute, and by virtue of the number of votes cast for each 
Supervisor, and is declared to have been elected for the following terms of office: 
 
 Martin Shank  four (4) year term 

 Nick St. Cavish   four (4) year term 

 Len Okyn   four (4) year term 

 
3.  Said term of office shall commence immediately upon the adoption of this Resolution. 
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 19TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2019. 
 
 
   
 Dr. Martin Shank, President 
  
 
 
   
 Kenneth Cassel Assistant Secretary 

Agenda Page 13



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fifth Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 14



CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
FINANCIAL REPORTING – MEETING AUGUST 19, 2019 

Agenda Page 15



CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR JULY 2019 

AUGUST 19, 2019 

Board of Supervisors Meeting 

Agenda Page 16



DESCRIPTION GENERAL WATER & SEWER GENERAL TOTALS

FUND FUND FIXED ASSETS

ASSETS

Cash & Cash Equivalents

  Checking Accounts 351,738$           1,299,763 -$  1,651,501$        

  CDAR'S 2,000,000          2,000,000 - 4,000,000 

  CD'S & Money Market Accounts 2,145,542          7,309,054 - 9,454,596 

  Investments 2,521,437 7,442,399 - 9,963,836 

Restricted Investments - 4,394,630 - 4,394,630 

Accounts Receivable - 683,095 - 683,095 

Accrued Interest Receivable - 51,886 - 51,886 

Unbilled Utility Revenues Receivable - 767,049 - 767,049 

Due from Other Funds 547 - - 547 

Prepaid Expenses 4,406 40,046 - 44,452 

Deferred Outflow-2007 Series - 1,592,775          - 1,592,775 

Land - 361,739 553,200 914,939 

Easements - 394,998 - 394,998 

Meters in Field (Net) - 1,051,699 - 1,051,699 

Machinery & Equipment (Net) - 363,405 155,242 518,647 

Imp. Other than Bldgs. (Net) - 51,191,976        6,242,174 57,434,150        

Buildings (Net) - 146,993 - 146,993 

Construction in Progress - 2,398,780 - 2,398,780 

TOTAL ASSETS 7,023,670$        81,490,287$      6,950,616$        95,464,573$      

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET

JULY 31, 2019

All Fund Types and Account Groups

Page #1

Agenda Page 17



DESCRIPTION GENERAL WATER & SEWER GENERAL TOTALS

FUND FUND FIXED ASSETS

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET

JULY 31, 2019

All Fund Types and Account Groups

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable -$  -$  -$  -$  

Contracts Payable - - - - 

Retainage Payable - - - - 

Accrued Int Payable-2016 Series - 204,408             - 204,408 

Accrued Wages Payable - - - - 

Accrued Vac/Sick Time Payable - 236,396             - 236,396 

Pension Payable - - - - 

Utility Tax Payable - 52,859 - 52,859 

Payroll Taxes Payable - - - - 

Deposits 77,357 554,895             - 632,252 

Deferred Revenues - - - - 

Due to Other Funds - 547 - 547 

Net OPEB Obligation - 99,348 - 99,348 

Bonds Payable-2016 Series - 38,615,000        - 38,615,000        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 77,357$             39,763,453$      -$  39,840,810$      

FUND BALANCE / NET POSITION

Fund Balance:

  Unspendable 4,406 - 4,406 

  Assigned 3,584,166 - 3,584,166 

  Unassigned 3,357,741 - - 3,357,741 

Net Position - 41,726,834        - 41,726,834        

Investment in GF - - 6,950,616 6,950,616 

TOTAL FUND BALANCE/ NET ASSETS 6,946,313$        41,726,834$      6,950,616$        55,623,763$      

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 7,023,670$        81,490,287$      6,950,616$        95,464,573$      

Page #2

Agenda Page 18



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 10 MONTHS VARIANCE

BUDGET THRU ENDING FAVORABLE

FY 2018-2019 7/31/2019 7/31/2019 (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES

Assessments (Net)      (*) 3,849,956$   3,386,483$   3,386,483$   -$   

Permit Review Fees 1,000  833  2,400  1,567  

Interest Income 20,000  16,667  81,792  65,125  

Shared Personnel Revenue 33,896  28,246  28,246  -  

Miscellaneous Revenue -  -  8,746  8,746  

FEMA Reimbursement -  -  67,517  67,517  

Carry Forward Assigned Funds (*)    92,885  -  -  -  

TOTAL REVENUES 3,997,737$   3,432,229$   3,575,184$   142,955$   

EXPENDITURES

ADMINISTRATIVE

Supervisor Fees 7,200$   6,000$   6,000$   -$   

Salaries/Wages 133,908  113,307  111,357  1,950  

Special Pay (*) 238  238  238  -  

FICA Taxes 10,796  9,135  9,006  129  

Pension Expense 16,069  13,597  13,663  (66)  

Health Insurance 54,611  45,509  44,251  1,258  

Workers Comp. Ins. 379  316  443  (127)  

Engineering Fees  (*) 30,000  25,000  23,188  1,812  

Legal Fees 60,000  50,000  49,666  334  

Special Consulting Services 100,000  83,333  70,793  12,540  

Annual Audit (*) 10,500  8,000  8,000  -  

Actuarial Computation-OPEB  2,772  2,310  -  2,310  

Management Fees 57,313  47,761  47,761  -  

Telephone Expense 3,334  2,778  2,778  -  

Postage 668  556  556  -  

Printing & Binding 1,260  1,050  1,050  -  

Administrative Building Cost 12,000  10,000  10,000  -  

Insurance 1,179  983  680  303  

Legal Advertising 2,000  1,667  267  1,400  

Contingencies/Other Current Charges 1,000  833  524  309  

Paver Incentive Program 12,500  10,417  -  10,417  

Computer Expense/Technology 29,400  24,500  21,411  3,089  

Digital Record Management 1,000  833  68  765  

Office Supplies 7,125  5,938  5,974  (36)  

Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits 7,800  6,500  5,868  632  

Promotional Expenses (*) 8,400  7,000  1,964  5,036  

Capital Purchases (*) -  -  -  -  

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 571,452$   477,561$   435,506$   42,055$   

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance

For the Period Ending July 31, 2019

Page #3

Agenda Page 19



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 10 MONTHS VARIANCE

BUDGET THRU ENDING FAVORABLE

FY 2018-2019 7/31/2019 7/31/2019 (UNFAVORABLE)

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance

For the Period Ending July 31, 2019

FIELD OPERATIONS

Salaries and Wages 278,553$   235,699$   219,649$   16,050$   

Special Pay (*) 813  813  813  -  

FICA Taxes 21,309  18,031  16,613  1,418  

Pension Expense 33,426  28,284  26,364  1,920  

Health Insurance 88,849  74,041  74,673  (632)  

Worker's Comp. Insurance 15,433  12,861  12,749  112  

Water Quality Testing 3,000  2,500  1,619  881  

Communications-Radios/Cellphones 1,872  1,560  855  705  

Electric 1,411  1,176  512  664  

Rentals & Leases -  -  -  -  

Insurance 14,845  12,371  8,160  4,211  

R & M - General 54,010  45,008  48,020  (3,012)  

R & M - Culvert Inspection & Cleaning 69,500  57,917  129,000  (71,083)  

R & M - Canal Dredging & Maintenance 25,000  20,833  -  20,833  

R & M - Vegetation Management 15,000  12,500  4,630  7,870  

Operating Supplies - General 3,825  3,188  1,528  1,660  

Operating Supplies - Chemicals 114,659  95,549  75,660  19,889  

Operating Supplies - Uniform 1,823  1,519  1,211  308  

Operating Supplies - Motor Fuels 51,705  43,088  6,064  37,024  

Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits 3,752  3,127  1,722  1,405  

Capital Outlay-Equipment (*)     27,500  22,917  -  22,917  

Capital Improvements (*)    1,000,000  833,333  373,352  459,981  

TOTAL FIELD 1,826,285$   1,526,315$   1,003,194$   523,121$   

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,397,737$   2,003,876$   1,438,700$   565,176$   

RESERVES

Reserved for 1st Qtr. Operating 350,000  291,667  -  291,667  

Reserved for Projects & Emergencies 250,000  208,333  -  208,333  

Storm Damages Reserves 1,000,000  833,333  -  833,333  

TOTAL RESERVES 1,600,000$   1,333,333$   -$   1,333,333$   

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & RESERVES 3,997,737$   3,337,209$   1,438,700$   1,898,509$   

EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

     EXPENDITURES & RESERVES -$   2,136,484$   

FUND BALANCE BEGINNING 4,809,829$   

FUND BALANCE ENDING 6,946,313$   

(*) Not prorated figures

Page #4

Agenda Page 20



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 10 MONTHS VARIANCE

BUDGET THRU ENDING FAVORABLE

FY 2018-2019 7/31/2019 7/31/2019 (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES

Water Revenue 6,467,008$        5,389,173           5,474,042$        84,869$             

Sewer Revenue 5,852,977 4,877,481           4,864,595 (12,886)              

Standby Revenue 3,120 2,600 2,560 (40) 

Processing Fees 12,000 10,000 14,200 4,200 

Lien Information Fees 9,000 7,500 14,425 6,925 

Delinquent Fees 290,000 241,667 261,400 19,733 

Contract Utility Billing Services 59,620 49,684 49,684 - 

Contract HR & Payroll Services 12,902 10,752 10,752 - 

Facility Connection Fees - - 28,280 28,280 

Meter Fees - - 5,592 5,592 

Line Connection Fees - - 21,700 21,700 

Interest Income-Restricted - - 95,710 95,710 

Interest Income-Operations 65,000 54,167 275,162 220,995             

Rent Revenue 63,304 52,753 76,622 23,869 

Technology Sharing Revenue 15,000 12,500 12,500 - 

Misc. Revenues 12,000 10,000 29,563 19,563 

Renewal & Replacement  (*) 365,000 - - - 

Carryforward Prior Yr. Fund Balance (*) 4,372,639 1,285,723           1,285,723 - 

TOTAL REVENUES 17,599,570$      12,004,000$       12,522,510$      518,510$           
 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

WATER & SEWER FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets

For the Period Ending July 31, 2019

Page #5

Agenda Page 21



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 10 MONTHS VARIANCE

BUDGET THRU ENDING FAVORABLE

FY 2018-2019 7/31/2019 7/31/2019 (UNFAVORABLE)

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

WATER & SEWER FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets

For the Period Ending July 31, 2019

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE

Salaries and Wages   1,002,793$        848,517$            778,746$           69,771$             

Special Pay (*) 2,252 2,198 2,198 - 

FICA Taxes 76,713 64,911 58,344 6,567 

Pension Expense 120,335 101,822 91,924 9,898 

Health Insurance 199,390 166,158 141,958 24,200 

Workers Comp. Insurance 2,707 2,256 1,772 484 

Unemployment Compensation 4,000 3,333 - 3,333 

Engineering Fees  (*) 33,600 22,400 6,113 16,287 

Trustee/Other Debt Expenses (*) 10,740 9,159 9,159 - 

Legal Fees 36,000 24,000 15,600 8,400 

Special Consulting Services 90,570 75,475 63,502 11,973 

Travel & Per Diem (Board) 4,500 3,750 2,792 958 

Annual Audit  (*) 12,000 12,000 12,000 - 

Actuarial Computation - OPEB 2,700 2,250 - 2,250 

Management Fees 85,973 71,644 72,040 (396) 

Telephone Expense 12,810 10,675 10,640 35 

Postage 36,200 30,167 25,745 4,422 

Printing & Binding 21,970 18,308 14,524 3,784 

Electric Expense 12,000 10,000 7,735 2,265 

Rentals and Leases 3,075 2,562 2,077 485 

Insurance 15,288 12,740 7,956 4,784 

Repair and Maintenance 16,970 14,142 20,186 (6,044) 

Legal Advertising 13,800 11,500 445 11,055 

Other Current Charges 27,060 22,550 19,992 2,558 

Merchant Fees 68,700 57,250 58,142 (892) 

Computer/Technology Expenses 63,831 53,193 32,750 20,443 

Employment Ads 18,840 15,700 8,118 7,582 

Toilet Rebate 14,850 12,375 8,217 4,158 

Office Supplies 4,000 3,333 67 3,266 

Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits (*) 12,000 10,000 2,013 7,987 

Promotional Expenses (*) 18,310 15,258 15,914 (656) 

Capital Outlay  (*) 50,000 41,667 9,303 32,364 

Total Administrative 2,093,977$        1,751,293$         1,499,972$        251,321$           

Page #6

Agenda Page 22



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 10 MONTHS VARIANCE

BUDGET THRU ENDING FAVORABLE

FY 2018-2019 7/31/2019 7/31/2019 (UNFAVORABLE)

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

WATER & SEWER FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets

For the Period Ending July 31, 2019

PLANT OPERATIONS 

Salaries and Wages   1,715,618$        1,451,677$         1,190,793$        260,884$           

Special Pay (*) 2,702 2,599 2,599 - 

FICA Taxes 131,244 111,053 91,369 19,684 

Pension Expense 203,124 171,874 130,046 41,828 

Health Insurance 334,514 278,762 216,739 62,023 

Workers Comp. Insurance 59,877 49,898 51,297 (1,399) 

Water Quality Testing  72,066 60,055 42,430 17,625 

Telephone Expense 9,864 8,220 5,017 3,203 

Electric Expense 678,409 508,806 459,007 49,799 

Rentals and Leases 13,900 11,583 2,609 8,974 

Insurance 158,849 132,375 99,527 32,848 

Repair & Maintenance-General 694,656 463,104 390,811 72,293 

Repair & Maint-Filters for Water Plant (*) 705,050 603,289 603,289 - 

Sludge Management - Sewer  150,000 125,000 73,578 51,422 

Office Supplies 2,765 2,304 2,075 229 

Operating Supplies - General           95,675 79,729 26,283 53,446 

Operating Supplies - Chemicals 408,767 306,575 184,856 121,719             

Uniforms         9,255 7,713 6,186 1,527 

Motor Fuels     81,756 68,130 12,902 55,228 

Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits (*) 71,212 59,343 46,908 12,435 

Capital Outlay   (*) 3,276,430 2,730,358           2,252,907 477,451             

Renewal & Replacement (*) 365,000 304,167 252,767 51,400 

TOTAL PLANT OPERATIONS 9,240,733$        7,536,614$         6,143,995$        1,392,619$        
 

Page #7

Agenda Page 23



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 10 MONTHS VARIANCE

BUDGET THRU ENDING FAVORABLE

FY 2018-2019 7/31/2019 7/31/2019 (UNFAVORABLE)

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

WATER & SEWER FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets

For the Period Ending July 31, 2019

FIELD OPERATIONS  

Salaries and Wages 748,175$           633,071$            533,629$           99,442$             

Special Pay 1,459                 1,245                  1,245                 -                     

FICA Taxes 57,235               48,430                40,917 7,513                 

Pension Expense 89,780               75,968                61,127               14,841               

Health Insurance 206,450             172,042              147,532             24,510               

Workers Comp. Insurance 34,864               29,053                35,205               (6,152)                

Water Quality Testing 1,000                 833                     -                     833                    

Naturescape Irrigation Service (*) 4,679                 4,679                  4,819                 (140)                   

Telephone Expense 10,800               9,000                  9,630                 (630)                   

Electric Expense 114,735             86,051                66,186               19,865               

Rent Expense 17,480               14,567                1,526                 13,041               

Rent Expense - SCADA 56,040               46,700                46,700               -                     

Insurance 22,206               18,505                13,046                5,459                 

Repairs and Maintenance 97,468               81,223                31,866               49,357               

R&M Vehicles 20,000               16,667                20,001               (3,334)                

R&M Generators 26,083               21,736                13,708               8,028                 

R&M Lift Stations 168,850             140,708              107,546             33,162               

Meters 49,340               41,117                21,872               19,245               

Office Supplies 1,680                 1,400                  628                    772                    

Operating Supplies - General            61,295               51,079                53,203                (2,124)                

Uniforms         5,820                 4,850                  3,592                 1,258                 

Motor Fuels     28,580               23,817                15,007               8,810                 

Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits  (*) 13,296               11,080                7,149                 3,931                 

Capital Outlay (*) 1,324,000          1,103,333           941,221              162,112             

Renewal & Replacement  (*) -                     -                      -                      -                     

TOTAL FIELD OPERATIONS 3,161,315$        2,637,154$         2,177,355$        459,799$           
   

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 14,496,024$      11,925,061$       9,821,322$        2,103,739$        
   

Page #8

Agenda Page 24



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 10 MONTHS VARIANCE

BUDGET THRU ENDING FAVORABLE

FY 2018-2019 7/31/2019 7/31/2019 (UNFAVORABLE)

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

WATER & SEWER FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets

For the Period Ending July 31, 2019

RESERVES

Required Reserve for R & R -                     -                      -                     -                     

TOTAL OPERATING EXP & RESERVE 14,496,024$      11,925,061$       9,821,322$        2,103,739$        

AVAILABLE FOR DEBT SERVICE 3,103,546$        2,701,188$        

DEBT SERVICE

Principal

 2016 Series 1,595,000          1,329,166           1,329,166          -                     

Interest  

 2016 Series 1,226,405          1,022,005           1,022,005          -                     

Total Debt Service 2,821,405$        2,351,171$         2,351,171$        -$                   
 

Excess Revenues (Expenses) 282,141             350,017             

TOTAL DEBT SERV & RESERVES 3,103,546          2,701,188          

Net Assets Beginning  41,376,817$      

Net Assets Ending  41,726,834$      

(*) Not prorated figures    

AMOUNT

REVENUES 12,522,510$      

OPERATING EXENDITURES  

   Operating Expenditures-Admin 1,499,972          

   Operating Expenditures-Plant 6,143,995          

   Operating Expenditures-Field 2,177,355          

TOTAL OPERATING EXENDITURES 9,821,322$        

Reserve Required for Future Debt Service -                     
 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES & RESERVES 9,821,322$        

AVAILABLE FOR DEBT SERVICE 2,701,188$        

LESS: DEBT SERVICE 2,351,171          

EXCESS REVENUES (EXP) 350,017$           

Debt Service

Coverage

1.15                   

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

& DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE

Page #9

Agenda Page 25



 

BUDGET %  COLLECTED REMAINING

100% 88% 12%
$3,849,956 $3,386,483 $463,473

$ 0

497,219              

2,544,812           

68,351                

70,415                

43,334                

88,743                

26,214                

12,310                

35,085                

 

 $3,386,483

1/31/2019

2/28/2019

3/31/2019

TOTALS

DATE

4/30/2019

5/31/2019

6/30/2019

7/31/2019

ASSESSMENTS COLLECTED

(Net of all Commissions & Fees)

10/31/2018

11/30/2018

12/31/2018

88%

12%

CSID Assessment Collected  
FY 2018 - 2019

%  COLLECTED

REMAINING

Page #10

Agenda Page 26



 

 

 

 

CHECK REGISTER – GENERAL FUND 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page #11

Agenda Page 27



FUND CHECK DATE CHECK No. AMOUNT

General Fund 07/01/2019 thru 07/31/2019 #4975 - #5000 $108,504.04
 

Total  $108,504.04
 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTERS

JULY 2019

Page #12

Agenda Page 28



Page #13

Agenda Page 29



Page #14

Agenda Page 30



 
 

 

 

 

CHECK REGISTER – WATER & SEWER 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page #15

Agenda Page 31



FUND CHECK DATE CHECK No. AMOUNT

Water and Sewer 07/01/2019 thru 07/31/2019 #27603 - #27808 $1,237,424.46
 

Total  $1,237,424.46

JULY 2019

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTERS

Page #16

Agenda Page 32



 
 

 

 

 

CHECK REGISTER – WATER & SEWER 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page #17

Agenda Page 33



Page #18

Agenda Page 34



Page #19

Agenda Page 35



Page #20

Agenda Page 36



Page #21

Agenda Page 37



Page #22

Agenda Page 38



Page #23

Agenda Page 39



Page #24

Agenda Page 40



Page #25

Agenda Page 41



Page #26

Agenda Page 42



Page #27

Agenda Page 43



Page #28

Agenda Page 44



Page #29

Agenda Page 45



Page #30

Agenda Page 46



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sixth Order of Business 

Agenda Page 47



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6A. 
  

Agenda Page 48



Agenda Page 49



Agenda Page 50



Agenda Page 51



Agenda Page 52



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6B. 
  

Agenda Page 53



Agenda Page 54



Agenda Page 55



Agenda Page 56



 

July 12, 2019 
 
Ken Cassel, Manager 
Coral Springs Improvement District 
10300 NW 11th Manor,  
Coral Springs, FL 33071 
 
RE: Logar Village 

NW 94th Avenue, South of 16th Street  
 Review of Storm Water Management Application 
 
Ken: 
 
Please find attached this office’s recommendations for approval for on and off-site 
construction associated with Logar Village.  Two storm water management licenses are 
required as on and off-site portions of this project will be owned and maintained by 
separate entities following construction.  The design presented for NW 94th Avenue and on-
site portions comply with District Criteria and we recommend approval.   
 
I suggest the two storm water management licenses be considered (approved) together, as 
the on-site portion relies on off-site components for conveyance of runoff.  Alternately the 
SWM license for NW 94th Avenue may be considered first.   
 
 
Regards, 
 
 
Glen A. Hanks, P.E. 

Agenda Page 57



 

August 12, 2019 
 
Ken Cassel, Manager 
Coral Springs Improvement District 
10300 NW 11th Manor,  
Coral Springs, FL 33071 
 
RE: Logar Village – Off-site  

NW 94th Avenue, South of 16th Street  
 Review of Storm Water Management Application 
 
Ken: 
 
This office reviewed the plans, details and calculations for Logar Village, signed and dated 
June 12, 2019 and found the storm water management system depicted and serving off-site 
portions of the development (portions of NW 94th Avenue) meet the requirements of the 
Coral Springs Improvement District as set forth in the Permit Criteria Manual.  This office 
recommends approval of a storm water management license covering the improvement of 
NW 94th Avenue as depicted on plans prepared by Pillar Consultants.   
 
Background 
Logar Village, located on NW 94th Avenue, South of 16th Street is presently vacant.  Utilities 
were installed in the right of way for NW 94th Avenue, however the NW 94th Avenue was 
not improved.   
 
Proposed Work 
The development depicted on plans and calculations by Pillar Consultants, Inc. reflects the 
improvement of 540 LF of NW 94th Avenue immediately south of NW 16th Street.  The 
improvements depicted include paving, curbs, inlets, culverts, exfiltration trench and 
roadside swales.  Work within the right of way of NW 94th Avenue will be transferred to and 
be the responsibility of the City of Coral Springs, following completion of the project.   
 
Applicable Criteria 
This portion of NW 94th Ave is required to provide  

• 1/2” of dry pretreatment,  
• Full water quality treatment  
• Storage at or below the 10-year flood elevation equal to the basin required storage 

plus runoff resulting from the 10-year storm event falling on the excess impervious 
area 

Agenda Page 58



Logar Village – NW 94th Avenue 
August 12, 2019 
Page 2 

   

   

• Storage at or below the 100-year flood elevation equal to the basin required storage 
plus runoff resulting from the 10-year storm event falling on the excess impervious 
area 

• Provide a pollution retardant baffle prior to discharge to the District’s facilities 
 
Approach 
Plans and calculations submitted for this project depict: 

• 0.67 AC of road right of way 
• 0.32 AC of paving 
• 0.05 AC of sidewalk  
• 0.3 AC of roadside swales, and  
• 65 LF of 5’Hx8’W exfiltration trench providing 0.96 AC-In (0.08 AF) of water quality 

treatment, meeting water quality treatment requirements 
 
Analysis 
The proposed improvements to NW 94th Avenue depicted on plans submitted by Pillar 
Consultants for Logar Village comply with the requirements set forth in the Permit Criteria 
Manual for water quality treatment and storage.  This office recommends approval of a 
storm water management license authorizing construction of 0.32 AC of roadway on 0.67 
AC of right of way, providing water quality treatment and storage consistent with District 
requirements.   
 
Regards, 
 
 
Glen A. Hanks, P.E. 

Agenda Page 59



 

August 12, 2019 
 
Ken Cassel, Manager 
Coral Springs Improvement District 
10300 NW 11th Manor,  
Coral Springs, FL 33071 
 
RE: Logar Village 

NW 94th Avenue, South of 16th Street  
 Review of Storm Water Management Application 
 
Ken: 
 
This office reviewed the plans, details and calculations for Logar Village, signed and dated 
June 12, 2019 and found the storm water management system depicted and serving on-site 
portions of the development, meets the requirements of the Coral Springs Improvement 
District as set forth in the Permit Criteria Manual.  This office recommends approval of a 
storm water management license covering on-site portions.   
 
Background 
Logar Village, located on NW 94th Avenue, South of 16th Street is presently vacant.  Utilities 
were installed in the right of way for NW 94th Avenue, however the NW 94th Avenue was 
not improved.   
 
Proposed Work 
The development depicted on plans and calculations by Pillar Consultants, Inc. reflects the 
development of 11 townhouse units on 0.93 acres of presently vacant land.  Lots 16 and 17, 
while under common ownership are to be developed separately, are excluded from this 
permit and to remain vacant.  Prior to any construction on lots 16 and 17, separate 
approval from permitting.  This phase of Logar Village, exceeds the impervious ratio 
accommodated in the master permit.  The developer proposes additional storage to off-set 
additional impacts from impervious areas in excess of that accommodated by the District’s 
system.   
 
Applicable Criteria 
This project located in the East Basin is required to provide  

• 1/2” of dry pretreatment,  
• Full water quality treatment  

Agenda Page 60



Logar Village, On-site portions 
August 12, 2019 
Page 2 

   

   

• Storage at or below the 10-year flood elevation equal to the basin required storage 
plus runoff resulting from the 10-year storm event falling on the excess impervious 
area 

• Storage at or below the 100-year flood elevation equal to the basin required storage 
plus runoff resulting from the 10-year storm event falling on the excess impervious 
area 

• Provide a pollution retardant baffle prior to discharge to the District’s facilities 
 
Approach 
Plans and calculations submitted for this project depict: 

• 0.26 AC of building 
• 0.26 AC of paving and patios, and  
• 0.41 AC of pervious area 
• 160 LF of 4’Hx6’W exfiltration trench providing 0.96 AC-In (0.08 AF) of water quality 

treatment, meeting water quality treatment requirements 
• Minimum perimeter elevations of 11.8 ft. NAVD  
• Controlled (restricted) discharges to accommodate required storage for the 10 and 

100-year storms plus offsetting storage for additional impervious areas at elevations 
higher than prescribed in the Permit Criteria Manual 

 
Analysis 
The plans submitted for Logar Village comply with the requirements set forth in the Permit 
Criteria Manual for water quality treatment and storage.  This office recommends approval 
of a storm water management license covering on-site portions of the development and 
authorizing construction of 0.26 AC of building, 0.26 AC of paving and other impervious 
areas, and 160 ft. of 4’Hx6’W exfiltration trench on a 0.93 AC site, consistent with District 
criteria.       
 
Regards, 
 
 
Glen A. Hanks, P.E. 

Agenda Page 61



Agenda Page 62



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Seventh Order of Business 

 

Agenda Page 63



CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  

PROPOSED 
BUDGET 
FY 2019 / 2020 

GENERAL FUND

Agenda Page 64



Table of Contents 

I. INTRODUCTION

A. About the District  ............................................................................................................ 2-3 

B. Development of the District Budget ................................................................................... 4 

II. BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS

A. Proposed Budget.…………………………………………………………………………………………...............5-7 

B. Budget Narrative……………………………………………………………………………………....................8-17

Page # 1

Agenda Page 65



ABOUT THE DISTRICT 

The Coral Springs Improvement District (CSID or “The District”) was incorporated in 1970 for the purpose 
of constructing and maintaining systems of drainage, flood control within the boundaries of the District. 

The District was formed enabling the development of the Southern portion of the City of Coral Springs. 
This was only possible by providing drainage to that land. The District levies and collects non-ad valorem 
assessments for the purpose of maintenance, operation and repair of the stormwater management 
system.  

The primary responsibility of the stormwater management department is to prevent flooding throughout 
the District. Stormwater runoff is conveyed to canals via street drains which are maintained by the City of 
Coral Springs and/or private HOA’s.  

CSID monitors and adjusts the water levels in 22 miles of canals, and is responsible for maintenance 
therein.  The District keeps vegetation growth in the canals under control through chemical and biological 
(natural) methods, and routinely removes debris of all kinds from canals.  

The District maintains and operates two pump stations, each capable of pumping 200,000 gallons per 
minute. 

Page # 2

Agenda Page 66



Coral Springs Improvement District has continuously improved and performed Canal Bank Restorations. 
The District corrected failing canal banks in 7 locations, constructed improvements for 4,000 linear feet of 
canal bank and spent $6.12 million from reserves to complete this job.  

Page # 3

Agenda Page 67



 

DEVELOPMENT OF THE DISTRICT’S BUDGET  

The District has historically operated, maintained, improved and expanded its stormwater drainage 
system through the General Fund budget. All operating and capital costs for the system have been funded 
by revenues generated through an assessment program. 

The District’s General Fund budget is a product of a financial plan adopted and approved by the Board of 
Supervisors. Any amendments to the budget are reflected in the amended budget.  

The General Fund budget is prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page # 4

Agenda Page 68



Coral Springs Improvement District

General Fund

Proposed Budget

Fiscal Year Ending 2019-2020

  

 Adopted Actual Proposed Total Proposed

   Description Budget thru Next Projected thru Budget

2018/19 3/31/2019 6 Months 9/30/2019 2019-2020

REVENUES

Assessment Revenues  (Net)..budgeted 3,849,956    3,224,132     625,824        3,849,956        3,849,956    

Assessment Revenues..excess collected -               -                -                -                  -               

Permit Review Fees 1,000           2,200            -                2,200               1,000           

Miscellaneous Revenue -               8,746            308               9,054               -               

Interest Income 20,000         54,955          27,755          82,710             20,000         

Unrealized Gain (Loss)-SBA -               -                -                  -               

Shared Personnel Revenue 33,896         16,946          16,946          33,892             34,912         

Carry Forward Assigned Funds 92,885         -                92,885          92,885             -               

Total Revenues 3,997,737    3,306,979     763,718        4,070,697        3,905,868    

EXPENDITURES

Administrative

Supervisor Fees 7,200           3,600            3,600            7,200               7,200           

Salaries and Wages 133,908       68,506          68,506          137,012           162,726       

Special Pay 238              238               -                238                  281              

FICA Taxes 10,796         5,540            5,540            11,080             13,000         

Pension Expense 16,069         8,242            8,242            16,484             19,527         

Health Insurance 54,611         26,550          26,550          53,100             63,655         

Worker's Compensation Ins. 379              267               267               534                  620              

Engineering Fees 30,000         14,700          15,300          30,000             42,000         

Legal Fees 60,000         31,723          30,000          61,723             84,000         

Special Consulting Services 100,000       28,742          71,258          100,000           94,600         

Annual Audit 10,500         8,000            2,500            10,500             10,600         

Actuarial Computation-OPEB 2,772           -                2,772            2,772               2,772           

Management Fees 57,313         28,657          28,656          57,313             59,032         

Telephone Expense 3,334           1,666            1,668            3,334               3,434           

Postage 668              332               336               668                  688              

Printing & Binding 1,260           630               630               1,260               1,298           

Administrative Building Costs 12,000         6,000            6,000            12,000             12,360         

Insurance 1,179           408               771               1,179               1,238           

Legal Advertising 2,000           115               1,885            2,000               2,000           

Contingencies 1,000           398               602               1,000               1,000           

Paver Incentive Program 12,500         -                12,500          12,500             12,500         

Computer Expense/Technology 29,400         8,340            21,060          29,400             29,400         

Digital Record Management 1,000           -                1,000            1,000               1,000           

Office Supplies 7,125           3,800            3,325            7,125               7,337           

Dues, Subscriptions, etal. 7,800           175               7,625            7,800               7,875           

Promotional Expense 8,400           -                8,400            8,400               4,800           

Capital Purchases -               -                -                -                  -               

    Total Administrative 571,452       246,629        328,993        575,622           644,943       

Page # 5

Agenda Page 69



 Adopted Actual Proposed Total Proposed

   Description Budget thru Next Projected thru Budget

2018/19 3/31/2019 6 Months 9/30/2019 2019-2020

Field Operations

Salaries & Wages 278,553       138,191        138,191        276,382           286,361       

Special Pay 813              813               -                    813                  921              

FICA Taxes 21,309         10,479          10,479          20,958             21,907         

Pension Expense 33,426         16,576          16,576          33,152             34,363         

Health Insurance 88,849         44,715          44,715          89,430             107,813       

Worker's comp Ins 15,433         7,649            7,649            15,298             15,864         

Water Quality Testing 3,000           1,076            1,076            2,152               3,000           

Communications-Radios/Cellphones 1,872           803               803               1,606               2,022           

Electric 1,411           636               780               1,416               1,458           

Rentals and Leases -               154               154               308                  500              

Insurance 14,846         7,376            7,376            14,752             15,290         

R&M - General                                   54,010         34,172          31,000          65,172             74,250         

R&M - Facility 1,096            1,100            2,196               3,000           

R&M - Culvert Inspection & Cleaning 69,500         129,000        -                    129,000           119,500       

R&M - Canal Dredging & Maintenance  25,000         -                    25,000          25,000             25,000         

R&M - Vegetation Management 15,000         4,615            10,385          15,000             60,000         

Oper Supplies - General             3,825           1,819            2,006            3,825               17,025         

Oper Supplies - Chemicals         114,659       40,321          74,000          114,321           120,540       

Oper Supplies - Uniform Rental  1,823           699               699               1,398               2,414           

Oper Supplies - Motor Fuels       51,705         3,401            48,304          51,705             51,705         

Dues, Licenses, Schools 3,752           1,692            2,000            3,692               3,842           

Capital Outlay-Equipment 27,500         -                    27,500          27,500             27,500         

Capital Improvements 1,000,000    373,352        626,648        1,000,000        655,650       

    Total Field Operations 1,826,285    818,635        1,076,441     1,895,075        1,649,925    

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,397,737    1,065,264     1,405,434     2,470,697        2,294,868    

Excess Revenues Over Expenditures 1,600,000    2,241,715     (641,716)       1,600,000        1,611,000    

Reserves

Reserved for 1st Qtr Operating 350,000       350,000        -                350,000           361,000       

Reserves for Designated Projects/Emergency 250,000       250,000        -                250,000           250,000       

Storm Damages Reserves 1,000,000    1,000,000     -                1,000,000        1,000,000    

Total Reserves 1,600,000    1,600,000     -                1,600,000        1,611,000    

Excess Revenues Over Expenditures & Reserves -               641,716        (641,716)       - -$             

Page # 6

Agenda Page 70



Adopted Actual Proposed Total Proposed

   Description Budget thru Next Projected thru Budget

2018/19 3/31/2019 6 Months 9/30/2019 2019-2020

Source: General Fund Assessment Methodology Study - 5/2018

Page # 7

Agenda Page 71



REVENUES: 

Assessments 

The District levies a Non-Ad Valorem Assessment on all taxable property within the 
Coral Springs Improvement District in order to fund operating and maintenance 
expenditures, and future reserves. Based on the following table: 

Source: Assessment Methodology Study – 5/2018 

Permit Review Fees 

Permit fees are based on prior year’s revenues. 

Interest Income 

Interest is earned on cash balances in the District’s funds on deposit in checking and 
money market accounts and in various certificates of deposit. 

Shared Personnel Revenue 

The District has entered into an interlocal agreement with Pinetree Water Control 
District. Under the provisions of that agreement the District provides the services of 
an appropriately licensed field supervisor to Pinetree. Budgeted revenue from 
this source is $34,912. 

Page # 8

Agenda Page 72



 
EXPENDITURES 
 
Administrative:  

 
Supervisor Fees 
 
Board of Supervisors may be compensated $200 per meeting, not to exceed $2,400 
per year.  Based on 3 supervisors and 12 meetings per year, the amount should not 
exceed $7,200. 
 
Salaries and Wages 
 
The total amount of budgeted wages for this Fiscal Year is $162,726.   
 
Special Pay 
 
Special pay is a holiday bonus based on number of years of service.  Special pay is 
budgeted for $281. 
 
FICA Taxes 
 
FICA tax is established by the law and currently is 7.65%.  Based on salaries of 
$162,726 and Supervisors Fees of $7,200 FICA taxes are being budgeted for 
$13,000. 
 
Pension Expense 
 
The pension plan was established whereby the employer contributes into the plan 
annually.  Based on salaries of $162,726 pension expense is budgeted for $19,527. 
 
Health Insurance  
 
The District offers each employee Health, Life, Dental and Disability Insurance.  In 
addition, the board members are provided Health and Dental Insurance only.  The 
projected cost to be paid by the District for this fiscal year is $63,655. 
 
Worker’s Compensation Insurance 
 
The District’s Worker’s Compensation Insurance premium is budgeted for $620. 
 
Engineering Fees 
 
The District contracts for general engineering services on an annual basis.  Based 
on prior years’ experience, the projected amount for this Fiscal Year is $42,000. 
 

Page # 9

Agenda Page 73



Legal Fees 
 
The District currently has a contract with Lewis Longman & Walker, P.A. as legal 
counsel for the District.  This contract includes preparation for monthly board 
meetings, contract review, etc.  Based on prior year’s experience the projected 
amount for this Fiscal Year is $84,000. 
 
Special Consulting Services 
 
The District will need to engage a consultant who specializes in legislative 
codification.  Certain District limitations relating to bidding threshold requirements, 
efficiencies, gains and benefits inherent in contract administration, and supervisor 
compensation levels need to be revised and updated.  Additional consulting may be 
needed to conduct workshop sessions involving staff and department managers.  
The total amount being budgeted is $94,600. 
 
Annual Audit 
 
The District is required by Florida Statutes to arrange for an independent audit of its 
financial records on an annual basis.  Based on the current activity level the amount 
is not expected to exceed $10,600. 
 
Actuarial Computation-OPEB 
 
Florida Statutes require the employer to make health coverage available to retirees 
at the employer’s group rate.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
requires a periodic actuarial assessment of the cost and liability associated with 
these benefits.  In June 2017 GASB 75 replaced and expanded GASB 45 reporting 
requirements.  The District is budgeting $2,772 for this assessment. 
 
Management Fees 
 
This service includes $59,032 in management and financial advisory services 
provided to the District under the Management Contract with Inframark.   
 
Telephone 
 
Telephone and fax machine expenses are budgeted for this Fiscal Year for $3,434. 
 
Postage 
 
Mailing of agenda packages, overnight deliveries, correspondence, etc.  The 
projected expense for this Fiscal Year is $688. 
 
 

Page # 10

Agenda Page 74



 
Printing and Binding 
 
Checks, stationary, envelopes, photocopies, etc.  The projected expense for this 
Fiscal Year is $1,298. 
 
Administrative Building Costs 
 
This expense represents the costs to operate and maintain the administration 
building.  The projected amount for this cost is $12,360. 
 
Insurance 
 
The District retains Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors as our Insurance Agent, who on 
a yearly basis arranges the placement of the District insurance for property, general 
liability, and inland marine coverage. The expected amount for this Fiscal Year 
should not exceed $1,238. 
 
Legal Advertising 
 
The District does most of its legal advertising in the Sun-Sentinel.  Expenses include 
monthly meetings, special meetings, public hearings, etc.  Based on prior years’ 
experience the amount should not exceed $2,000. 
 
Contingencies 
 
The District is budgeting $1,000 for various bank charges incurred on its accounts.  
 
Paver Driveway Incentive Program 
 
An incentive of $250 payment each year to the first fifty District residents to replace 
a concrete or other impervious surface driveway with a pervious paver type 
driveway. Total budgeted is $12,500. 
 
Computer Expense/Technology  
 
All the District’s financial records, accounts payable are processed on a main frame 
computer owned by Coral Springs Improvement District Water and Sewer Fund.  
The budget amount for this technology is $29,400 and includes the cost of digital 
record keeping for engineering/project plans. 

Page # 11

Agenda Page 75



 
Digital Record Management 
 
The District is providing for the set up and maintenance of digital records of existing 
infrastructure as-builts as well as providing for the mapping of drainage assets.  The 
amount being budgeted is $1,000. 
 
Office Supplies 
 
Accounting and Administrative Supplies.  Projected expense for this year is $7,337. 
 
Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions 
 
An annual renewal fee to Florida Assoc. of Special Districts in the amount of $3,000,  
an annual Special District fee to the Department of Community Affairs in the amount 
of $175, on-going accounting and seminars totaling $1,000, and $3,700 for other 
management related training. The projected expense totals $7,875. 
 
Promotional Expense 
 
The District circulates periodic newsletters for the purpose of keeping its residents 
informed of issues affecting them and may sponsor an open house event for 
educating District residents about the services being provided.  The annual budget 
for this item is $4,800.  
 
 
Capital Purchases 
 
There are no budgeted expenditures.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page # 12

Agenda Page 76



Field Operations: 

Salaries and Wages 

The total amount of budgeted wages for this Fiscal Year is $286,361.  

Special Pay 

Special pay is a holiday bonus based on number of years of service.  Special pay is 
budgeted for $921. 

FICA Taxes 

FICA tax is established by the law and currently is 7.65%.  Based on salaries of 
$286,361 FICA taxes are being budgeted for $21,907. 

Pension Expense 

The pension plan was established whereby the employer contributes into the plan 
annually.  Based on salaries of $286,361 pension expense is budgeted for $34,363. 

Health Insurance 

The District offers the employees Health, Life, Dental and Disability Insurance.  The 
projected cost to be paid by the District for this fiscal year is $107,813. 

Worker’s Compensation Insurance 

The District’s Worker’s Compensation Insurance premium is budgeted for $15,864. 

Water Quality Testing 

Water Quality Testing is done to provide a guide for planning the aquatic plant 
control program and in addition provides indications of dangerous or threatening 
conditions.   Based on last year’s quarterly testing the amount is estimated to be 
$3,000. 

Page # 13

Agenda Page 77



Communications-Radios/Cellphones 

The District provides Nextel/Sprint telephones for the field employees.  The following 
are the estimated costs for the budget year. 

 Yearly 
Field Supervisor  $1,206 
Truck No. 1   408 
Truck No. 2       408 
Total $2,022 

Electric 

The District currently has the following utility accounts with Florida Power and Light 
Co. for purposes of providing electricity to the District’s two pump stations:  

  Address Yearly 

Pump Station # 1 - 121 N.W. 93rd Terrace    $    758 
Pump Station # 2 - 12000 S.W. 1st Street  700 
Total    $ 1,458 

Rentals and Leases 

Payments related to a lease on a copy machine. The projected cost to be paid by 
the District for this fiscal year is $500. 

Insurance 

The District retains Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors as our Insurance Agent, who on 
a yearly basis arranges the placement of the District insurance for property, general 
liability, and inland marine coverage.  Based on the prior years’ experience the 
expected amount for this Fiscal Year should not exceed $15,290. 

Page # 14

Agenda Page 78



Repair & Maintenance - General 

The following is a listing of the different repairs and maintenance needed for 
operations. 

Vehicle Maintenance $     5,000  
Pump Station Repairs/Maintenance   35,955 
Trash Pick-up Service  4,975 
Canal Bank Mowing    6,000 
Misc. Repairs  22,320 
Total $   74,250 

Repair & Maintenance - Facility 

Estimated costs for general facility maintenance are $3,000. 

Repair & Maintenance - Culvert Inspection and Cleaning 

Culvert inspection and cleaning costs of $119,500 are being budgeted this year. 

Repair & Maintenance - Canal Dredging & Maintenance 

Estimated costs for canal maintenance are $25,000. 

Repair & Maintenance – Vegetation Management 

Prevention of growth of invasive vegetation in canal rights-of-way, with associated 
bank repair.  This should not exceed $60,000. 

Operating Supplies - General 

The following is a listing of the different operating supplies needed for operations. 

Safety equipment      $  4,500 
Grass eating triploid carp    12,000 
 Annual Waterway Cleanup Donation  525 
Total  $17,025 

Operating Supplies - Chemicals 

Estimated costs for chemicals for the budget year are $120,540.   

Page # 15

Agenda Page 79



Operating Supplies - Uniform Rental / Purchase 
 
Estimated costs for uniform rental / purchase including Employee Safety Boot 
Allowance for the budget year are $2,414. 
 
Operating Supplies - Motor Fuels & Propane 
 
Estimated costs for motor fuels and propane for the budget year are $51,705. 
 
Dues, Licenses, Schools 
 
Employees are required to have an Aquatic License. This expense includes the 
classes, licenses and all fees related to the employee obtaining an Aquatic License.   
This year’s projected amount should not exceed $3,842. 
 
Capital Outlay-Equipment 
 
Capital outlay for equipment is budgeted for $27,500. 
 
Capital Improvements 
 
Capital improvements in the amount of $655,650 are being budgeted for canal bank 
restoration assessment.   
  
 

Page # 16

Agenda Page 80



Reserves for 1st Quarter Operating 

The amount of $361,000 is reserved toward 1st quarter operation expenses. 

Reserves for Assigned Projects and Emergencies 

The reserve fund is established to set aside funds for projects designed to maintain 
the District’s drainage assets and to provide for unexpected events/natural disasters 
that may occur other than those related to Hurricanes.  This fiscal year the amount 
projected to be set aside is $250,000. 

Storms Damages Reserves 

The district has established that 3 million dollars will be collected over the next three 
years to limit exposure of financial losses due to storms.  The 1 million dollars 
represents 2/3 of our target goal. 

Page # 17

Agenda Page 81



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7A 

 

Agenda Page 82



{CSID Resolution 2019-6} 

RESOLUTION 2019-6 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, 

ADOPTING THE FINAL GENERAL FUND BUDGET FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2020 
 
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12 of Chapter 2004-249, Laws of Florida, the District 

Manager has heretofore prepared and submitted to the Board of Supervisors, for approval, the 

District's proposed General Fund Budget for the ensuing fiscal year, said proposed budget having 

been previously approved by the Board of Supervisors; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on this 19th day of August, 2019, at which 

hearing members of the general public were given the opportunity to speak and the Board was 

able to hear any objections to the final budget prior to the adoption of the same; and  

 WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing on the adoption of the final budget was duly 

published as required by law; and  

 WHEREAS, the Board, having conducted said public hearing and having heard any 

objections and suggestions pertaining to the budget, has determined that it is in the best interests 

of the District and those residing within the District to adopt the Final General Fund Budget for 

Fiscal Year 2020. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 
 

 Section 1.  The recitals above are true and correct and are hereby made a part of this 

Resolution. 

 Section 2.  The General Fund Budget heretofore submitted to and approved by the Board 

is hereby adopted as the final General Fund Budget of the District for Fiscal Year 2020. 

 Section 3.  A verified copy of said final General Fund Budget shall be attached as an 

exhibit to this Resolution as Exhibit A and shall be included as part of the District's "Official 

Record of Proceedings." 

 Section 4.  The District Manager shall transmit a copy of this Resolution to the proper 

public officials so that its purpose and effect may be carried out in accordance with the law. 

 Section 5.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

 

 

Agenda Page 83



{CSID Resolution 2019-6} 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs 

Improvement District, this 19th day of August, 2019. 
 
 
  
   
 Dr. Martin Shank, President 
  
 
   
 Kenneth Cassel, Assistant Secretary  

Agenda Page 84



{CSID Resolution 2019-6} 

 
 

Exhibit A 

 

Fiscal Year 2020 Final Budget 

Agenda Page 85



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7B 

 

Agenda Page 86



{CSID Resolution 2019-7} 

RESOLUTION 2019-7 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT, LEVYING AND IMPOSING A NON AD VALOREM 

MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020 
 

 WHEREAS, certain improvements existing within the Coral Springs Improvement District (the 

“District”) and certain costs of operation, repairs and maintenance are being incurred by the District; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the District Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) finds and has determined that the 

District's total General Fund maintenance and operations budget, taking into consideration other revenue 

sources during Fiscal Year 2020, will amount to approximately $______________; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board further finds and has determined that the District’s total maintenance and 

operations during Fiscal Year 2020 will amount to $________________; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board further finds that the non-ad valorem special assessments it levies and 

imposes by this Resolution for maintenance and operations on the parcels of property involved will 

reimburse and fund the District for certain special and peculiar benefits received by the benefitted 

properties flowing from the maintenance, operation and repair of the systems, facilities and services 

apportioned in a manner that is fair and reasonable, in accordance with the applicable assessment 

methodology; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board understands that this Resolution levies only the maintenance and 

operations assessments for Fiscal Year 2020, and that the President of the District, the District Manager or 

the designee of the District Manager, shall certify a total non-ad valorem assessment roll in a timely 

manner to the Tax Collector in and for Broward County for collection to include all assessments levied 

and approved by the District on the property for maintenance and operation special assessments; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that there are, as provided in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a 

part hereof, assessable units which are responsible for the aforesaid costs of operation, repairs and 

maintenance as indicated therein. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, THAT: 
 

 Section 1. The recitals above are true and correct and are hereby made a part of this 

Resolution. 
 

Agenda Page 87



{CSID Resolution 2019-7} 

 Section 2. A special assessment for maintenance and operations as provided for in Chapter 

2004-489, Laws of Florida is hereby levied upon the platted lots within the District, and each benefitted  

property shall pay its proportionate share of the maintenance and operations assessments so levied, as 

identified in Exhibit A. 
 

 Section 3. That the collection and enforcement of the aforesaid maintenance and operations 

assessments on platted lots shall be by the County Tax Collector serving as agent of the State of Florida in 

Broward County (“Tax Collector”) and shall be at the same time and in like manner as ad valorem taxes 

and subject to all ad valorem tax collection and enforcement procedures which attend the use of the 

official annual tax notice.  All assessments levied by the District shall be subject to the same discounts as 

Broward County taxes. 
 

 Section 4. The levy and imposition of the maintenance and operations special assessments 

on platted lots included in the District, all of which shall be levied and certified as a total amount on the 

non-ad valorem assessment roll to the Broward County Property Appraiser and Tax Collector by the 

designee of the President of the Board on compatible medium no later than the 15th day of September 

2019, which shall then be collected by the Tax Collector on the tax notice along with other non-ad 

valorem assessments from other local governments and with all applicable property taxes to each platted 

parcel of property.  
 

 Section 5. The President of the Board of the Coral Springs Improvement District hereby 

designates the District Manager to perform the certification duties with respect to the list of lands 

included in the District that must pay the maintenance and operations assessment levy.  Said assessments 

shall be extended by the Broward County Property Appraiser on the Broward County tax roll and shall be 

collected by the Broward County Tax Collector in the same manner and time as the Broward County 

taxes.  The proceeds therefrom shall be paid to the Coral Springs Improvement District. 
 

 Section 6. The District Manager shall transmit a copy of this Resolution to the proper public 

officials so that its purpose and effect may be carried out in accordance with law. 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of August 2019, by the Board of Supervisors of the 

Coral Springs Improvement District, Broward County, Florida. 
 
 
 
 
    
Kenneth Cassel   Dr. Martin Shank   
Assistant Secretary  President 

Agenda Page 88



{CSID Resolution 2019-7} 

Exhibit A 

 

(to be completed by Assessment Department) 

Agenda Page 89



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Eighth Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 90



RESOLUTION 2019-8 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

APPROVING THE PROPOSED WATER AND SEWER 

BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020 AND SETTING A PUBLIC 

HEARING THEREON PURSUANT TO FLORIDA LAW 

 

 WHEREAS, the District Manager has heretofore prepared and submitted to the Board a 

proposed Water and Sewer Budget for Fiscal Year 2020; a copy of which is attached hereto as 

Exhibit A (“Budget”), and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has considered said proposed Budget and desires to 

set the required public hearing thereon; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

 

 Section 1. The recitals above are true and correct and are hereby made a part of this 

Resolution. 

 Section 2. The Budget proposed by the District Manager for Fiscal Year 2020 is hereby 

approved as the basis for conducting a public hearing to adopt said budget. 

 Section 3. A public hearing on said approved Budget is hereby declared and set for the 

following date, hour and place: 

 

 Date: September 16, 2019 

 Hour: 4:00 p.m. 

  Place:  District Offices  

     10300 NW 11th Manor 

    Coral Springs, Florida 33071 

 

 Section 4. The District Manager shall publish or have published notice of this public 

hearing in the manner prescribed by law. 

 

Section 5.   This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement 

District, this 19th day of August, 2019.  

 

      ________________________________________ 

 Martin Shank, President 

  

   

 Kenneth Cassel, Assistant Secretary 

Agenda Page 91



Exhibit A 

 

Proposed Water and Sewer Budget for Fiscal Year 2020 

 

Agenda Page 92



PROPOSED BUDGET 
2019 | 2020 

CORAL SPRINGS 

IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT 

WATER & SEWER 

Agenda Page 93



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

BOARD OF ELECTIVE SUPERVISORS 

• Dr. Martin Shank, President

• Duane Holland, Vice President

• Leonard Okin, Secretary

MANAGEMENT

• Kenneth Cassel, District Manager

• William G. Capko, District Attorney

• Rick Olson, District Engineer

• Dan Daly, Director of Operations

• Jan Zilmer, Human Resources Director

• David McIntosh, Director of Utilities

• Marta Rubio, Director of Finance

Agenda Page 94



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROFILE 

4 

5 

6-7

8

9-11

12-14

15

16-17

About the District   

District Boundaries 

Distinguish Awards  

Organization Chart  

Water Department 

Wastewater Management Department 

Maintenance Department 

Field Department 

II. PROPOSED BUDGET

18-22

23-26

27-34

35-40

41-45

46

Proposed Budget 

  Revenues 

 Admin Expenses 

 Plant Expenses 

 Field Expenses 

 Debt Service 

Agenda Page 95



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

ABOUT THE DISTRICT 

The Coral Springs Improvement District (CSID or “The District”) was incorporated in 1970 under the 

provisions of Chapter 70-617, Laws of Florida, for the purpose of constructing and maintaining 

systems of drainage, flood control and water and sewer utilities within the boundaries of the 

District. Its utilities currently service approximately 9,500 customers. 

The District is governed by a three-member Board of Supervisors who are elected by landowners 

within the District once every four years.  

Page #4

Agenda Page 96



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

DISTRICT BOUNDARIES & NEIGHBORHOOD REPORT 

CORAL SPRINGS ZIP CODE 33071 

Coral Springs Improvement District 

954-753-0729   csid@csidfl.org

10300 N.W. 11 Manor – Coral Springs, FL 33071

Covers all areas south of Royal Palm Boulevard to the C-14 canal.

According to Realtor Property Resources LLC report on 7/3/2019, the #1 dominant segment for this 

area are “Savvy Suburbanites” residents who are well educated, well read and well capitalized. This 

neighborhood most built between 1970 and 1990 are 91% owner occupied; 71% mortgaged with a 

median value of $311,000 and low vacancy. 48.1% college graduated, and 76.1% with some college 

education. Well-connected consumers that appreciate technology; these are informed shoppers 

with residents who actively pursue sport activities. It is a neighborhood with multiple investors that 

are financially active, using multiple resources for informed investing.  

Page #5

Agenda Page 97



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

DISTINGUISHED AWARDS 

Through the years, Coral Springs Improvement District (CSID) has obtained multiple awards; below 

are few of them.  

2017 FSAWWA Award to the CSID 
Water Treatment Plant  

2016 American 
Water Works 
Association 
Most Improved 
Class A Plant 
Award

2016 Certificate of Recognition to 
Water Treatment Plant for the 
outstanding 
 Performance in Developing Plans 
for the on-going cost savings. 

Plant Recovery – Zone 

Page #6

Agenda Page 98



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

                                            

2018 Award to Chief operator 
Joe Stephen’s for outstanding 
operator of the year from the 
Southeast Desalting Association 
“SEDA” 

Plant Recovery Zone - 10 
 

2019 Southeast Desalting 
Association membrane 
plant of the year award. 

Page #7

Agenda Page 99



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

 ORGANIZATION CHART FISCAL YEAR 2019/2020 

Page #8

Agenda Page 100



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

WATER DEPARTMENT 

Water treatment is a complex process that is highly regulated by state and federal laws.  Water 

treatment plant and system operators must be licensed and are required to undergo long-

term, on-the-job training before becoming fully qualified. At CDIS, licensed water professionals 

have a basic understanding of a wide range of subjects, including mathematics, biology, 

chemistry, and physics. Some of the tasks they complete on a regular basis include: 

• Operating and maintaining equipment to purify and clarify water;

• Monitoring and inspecting machinery, meters, gauges, and operating conditions;

• Conducting tests and inspections on water and evaluating the results;

• Maintaining optimal water chemistry;

• Applying data to formulas that determine treatment requirements, flow levels, and

• Concentration levels;

• Documenting and reporting test results and system operations to regulatory agencies; and

• Serving our community through customer support, education, and outreach.

PLANT LAYOUT 
OVERVIEW (LOW 

PRESSURE REVERSE 
OSMOSIS PROCESS) 

Page #9

Agenda Page 101



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

Water Membrane Treatment 

With many utilities facing threat of contamination from an increasing number of sources, the need for 

new and better ways to treat and protect water supplies is paramount. Membrane filtration has gained 

mainstream acceptance and is the preferred technology for many surface waters, for iron and 

manganese removal in ground waters, and for the removal of protozoans such as cryptosporidium. 

Membrane systems offer better removal of contaminants; higher efficiency, variable filtration ratings, 

consistent operation; and environment friendly to name some. 

Loading new membranes 
into pressure vessels 2018

DEGASIFIERS 

Page #10

Agenda Page 102



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

WATER DEPARTMENT HIGHLIGHTS 

 GIS indication of underground water line locations onsite including valves

 New well 4 on Atlantic Ave. established in 2014

 Well 6 submersible 316 stainless steel 50hp pump and motor being installed

 4,000-gallon 93% sulfuric acid bulk tank

 2,250,000 gallon per day reverse osmosis skid #3

 Degasifiers

 New bulk sodium hypochlorite tanks

 New fluoridation system covered mostly by a $205,000 grant from the state

 1,500 kw Cat generator which is capable of running the entire water plant at max capacity

 Lime softening plant circa 2014

 One-million-gallon storage tank

 Reverse Osmosis treatment facility

 2016 American Water Works Association most improved class A plant award

 2019 Southeast Desalting Association membrane plant of the year award.

Page #11

Agenda Page 103



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

WASTEWATER DEPARTMENT 

• Treats wastewater to regulatory standards

• Disposes of bio-solids and solid waste

• Disposes of treated wastewater through deep injection wells

• Maintains wastewater facilities

Wastewater Processing Plants 

• Phase II of the ongoing Wastewater Treatment Plant expansion project has been completed.

Among the items included in this 1.9-million-dollar project are an upgrade and replacement

of information technology system, the rehab of sewage processing plants, new wastewater

digester, environmentally compliant sludge processing equipment, and a state-of-the-art

emergency generator/auxiliary power system.

Page #12

Agenda Page 104



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

• The additional equipment and new facilities will give the District’s staff the ability to treat

wastewater to a degree that will assure the highest level of treatment possible and continue

District compliance with environmental and regulatory rules for years into the future.

Other projects recently completed: 

• Replacing and upgrading aged facilities

• Evaluation of need to drill a new monitoring well to monitor the quality of wastewater

effluent injected down the deep well.

• Demolishing two wastewater treatment plants that have operated years past their life

expectancy.

Page #13

Agenda Page 105



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

• Building a new treatment plant designed to replace the capacity of outdated Bar Screen

Replacement.

• New Dual-Zone Monitoring Well for Injection Well #1

• Pond Liner Replacement.

• Effluent Pump Station Electrical Improvement

• Wastewater Plant D suffered structural damage sufficient to render it inoperable. The

structural damage has to be repaired at a cost of $1,445,731.40.

Page #14

Agenda Page 106



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

Maintenance Department 

Striving to cut costs and maintaining high quality of work, the District has used its own workforce to 

perform multiple in-house projects. Repairing sprinklers systems, painting, updating electrical 

panels, correcting mechanical problems, performing general repairs and upgrades, fixing 

equipment, installing & designing safety tools are just few of the tasks performed on a daily basis by 

employees from this department. 

Page #15

Agenda Page 107



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

Field Department 

The field department personnel among other multiple contruction projects, repairs and maintains 

all District water lines, about 1080 Valves, 675 fire hydrants, 9500ish meters and countless other 

Appurtenances relating to Drinking water. They ensure that the finished water that the water plant 

makes gets distributed to the customer safely, with sufficient volume and pressure, is accurately 

metered  and maintains sufficient quality. They also collect wastewater. Returning it to the 

wastewater plant with similar goals in mind. 

Respond, clear and clean up sewer backups, complete spill reports, water samples testing and 

reporting to Health department and county offices. Rebuild replace and maintain 90ish wastewater 

pumps, 41 lift stations and another couple hundred wastewater valves. Maintain the housekeeping 

and internal cleanliness of those 41 lift stations. This department maintain Atlas data for all of the 

above mentioned items in electronic and paper form, and diagnose and repair electrical, SCADA and 

pump  related issues and respond to alarms.   

The District provides An AMR system (Advance Metering Reading System), a comprehensive meter 

reading platform with fixed network-like performance, minus the infrastructure or cost. An AMR 

system gives water management tools with the convenience and flexibility of having premier drive-

by technologyan authomated meter reading Drive-By system. Benefits: 

 Enhanced customer service

 Accurate meter reading collection

 Improved water conservation

 Wireless Communication

 Reduced Meter Reading Times

 Increased efficiency

 Enhanced employee safety

 Leak, tamper, and reverse flow alarms

Page #16

Agenda Page 108



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

Where does everything down the drain go?? 

Page #17

Agenda Page 109



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

PROPOSED BUDGET 

The District’s annual budgets are adopted for the General Fund and Water & Sewer Fund and 
approved by the Board of Supervisors.  

General Fund 

The District has historically operated, maintained, improved and expanded its stormwater drainage 
system through the General Fund budget. All operating and capital costs for the system are funded 
by revenues generated through an assessment program.  

The District already submitted a proposed budget for its General Fund which provided a none 
increase in the ad valorem assessments and it is intended to last for the coming two fiscal years. The 
current rates were initially adopted in Fiscal Year 2018/2019 and served the District for three 
consecutive years.  

Water & Sewer 

The Water & Sewer Fund is an enterprise fund established to account for operations that are to be 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private busiess enterprises. The cost of providing 
services to customers are to be recovered primarily through user charges.  

In accordance with Section 189.069 (11) of the Florida Status, Coral Springs Improvement District 
(CSID) management team present to you the Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Proposed budget for Water & 
Sewer Fund.  

Page #18

Agenda Page 110



 

 
ADOPTED ACTUAL PROJECTED TOTAL PROPOSED

DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU NEXT PROJECTED THRU BUDGET
FY 2018-2019 4/30/2019 5 Months 9/30/2019 FY 2019-2020

REVENUES

Water Revenue 6,467,008$      3,970,637$      2,496,371$      6,467,008$         6,467,008$      
Sewer Revenue 5,852,977        3,524,859        2,328,118        5,852,977           5,852,977        
Standby Revenue 3,120                1,780                1,271                3,051 3,120                
Processing Fees 12,000             9,700                2,300                12,000                 12,000 
Lien Revenue Fees 9,000                9,725                - 9,725 9,000                
Delinquent Fees 290,000           192,525           97,475 290,000 290,000           
Contract Utility Billing Services 59,620             34,780 24,840 59,620                 62,602 
Contract HR & Payroll Services 12,902             7,527                5,375                12,902                 13,289 
Facility Connection Fees - 22,720 - 22,720 - 
Meter Fees - 5,267 - 5,267 - 
Line Connection Fees - 21,400 - 21,400 - 
Interest Income-Restricted - 65,056 26,469 91,525                 - 
Interest Income-Operations 65,000 154,646 44,185 198,831 65,000 
Rent Revenue 63,304 52,841 10,463 63,304                 65,203 
Technology Sharing Revenue 15,000 8,750 6,250                15,000                 15,450 
Miscellaneous Revenue 12,000 26,849 - 26,849 12,000 
Renewal & Replacement 365,000           - 365,000 365,000 - 
Carryforward Prior Yr Fund Balance 4,372,639        1,150,000        2,719,076 3,869,076           1,705,236        

TOTAL REVENUES 17,599,570      9,259,062        8,127,193        17,386,255         14,572,885      

EXPENDITURES

Debt Service

  Principal 2016 Series 1,595,000        1,595,000        - 1,595,000 1,640,000        

  Interest 2016 Series 1,226,405        1,226,405        - 1,226,405 1,177,758        

Sub-Total Debt Service 2,821,405        2,821,405        - 2,821,405 2,817,758        

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund

PROPOSED BUDGET
Fiscal Year 2019 - 2020

Page #19

Agenda Page 111



ADOPTED ACTUAL PROJECTED TOTAL PROPOSED
DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU NEXT PROJECTED THRU BUDGET

FY 2018-2019 4/30/2019 5 Months 9/30/2019 FY 2019-2020

ADMINISTRATIVE

Salaries and Wages   1,002,793        524,647           424,259           948,906 1,011,726        
Special Pay 2,252                2,198                953 3,151 2,534                
FICA Taxes 76,713 39,056 32,456 71,512                 77,397 
Pension Expense 120,335           62,294 50,911 113,205 121,408           
Health Insurance 199,390           99,659 84,357 184,016 233,182           
Workers Comp. Insurance 2,707                1,240                1,145                2,385 3,423                
Unemployment Compensation 4,000                - 4,000 4,000 4,000                
OPEB Expense - - 2,726 2,726 2,862                
Engineering Fees 33,600 4,897                28,703 33,600                 33,600 
Trustee/Other Debt Expenses 10,740 9,159                1,581                10,740                 10,720 
Legal Fees 36,000 14,464 21,536 36,000                 60,000 
Special Consulting Services 90,570 58,350 50,000 108,350 86,000 
Travel & Per Diem (Board) 4,500                - 4,500 4,500 4,500                
Annual Audit 12,000 12,000 - 12,000 12,150 
Actuarial Computation 2,700                - 2,700 2,700 2,700                
Management Fees 85,973 50,187 35,786 85,973 88,552 
Telephone Expense 12,810 7,710                5,100 12,810 13,835 
Postage 36,200 17,876 18,324 36,200 36,600 
Printing & Binding 21,970 8,675                13,295 21,970 21,970 
Electric Expense 12,000 5,871                6,129                12,000 12,960 
Rentals and Leases 3,075                1,545                1,530                3,075 3,075                
Insurance 15,288 7,236                8,052                15,288 16,520 
Repair and Maintenance 16,970 9,558                14,572 24,130 26,460 
Legal Advertising 13,800 463 4,037                4,500 4,500                
Other Current Charges 27,060 17,942 9,118                27,060 29,910 
Merchant Fees 68,700 40,075 32,625 72,700 78,520 
Computer/Technology Expenses 63,831 23,455 40,376 63,831 113,835           
Employment Ads 18,840 1,380                12,170 13,550 13,550 
Toilet Rebate [150 x $99 = $14,850] 14,850 4,356                10,494 14,850 14,850 
Office Supplies 4,000                1,178                2,822                4,000 4,000                
Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits 12,000 1,615                10,385 12,000 12,000 
Promotional Expenses 18,310 15,142 3,168                18,310 14,640 
Capital Outlay 50,000 - 50,000 50,000 23,000 

Sub-Total Administrative 2,093,977        1,042,228        987,809           2,030,037           2,194,979        

PLANT OPERATIONS

Page #20

Agenda Page 112



ADOPTED ACTUAL PROJECTED TOTAL PROPOSED
DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU NEXT PROJECTED THRU BUDGET

FY 2018-2019 4/30/2019 5 Months 9/30/2019 FY 2019-2020

Salaries and Wages   1,715,618        795,800           795,800           1,591,600           1,700,446        
Special Pay 2,702                2,599                - 2,599 2,703                
FICA Taxes 131,244           61,249 61,249 122,498 130,084           
Pension Expense 203,124           90,114 90,114 180,228 201,000           
Health Insurance 334,514           158,888           158,888           317,776 354,297           
Workers Comp. Insurance 59,877 35,907 35,907 71,814                 93,877 
OPEB Expense - - - - 4,437                
Water Quality Testing  72,066 33,326 38,740 72,066                 68,475 
Telephone 9,864                3,514                5,018                8,532 8,900                
Electric 678,409           359,955           287,103           647,058 698,830           
Rentals and Leases 13,900 859 13,041 13,900                 15,500 
Insurance 158,849           69,668 88,443 158,111 166,630           
Repair & Maintenance 694,656           261,786           465,583           727,369 1,007,715        
Filters for Water Plant 705,050           592,044           113,006           705,050 678,290           
Sludge Management-Sewer  150,000           66,619 66,124 132,743 150,000           
Chemicals 408,767           140,691           268,076           408,767 337,995           
Operating Supplies 95,675 18,518 79,211 97,729                 98,675 
Office Supplies 2,765                1,916                1,719                3,635 3,635                
Uniforms         9,255                3,667                5,974                9,641 9,775                
Motor Fuels     81,756 7,711                74,045 81,756                 99,411 
Dues, Licenses & Permits 71,212 40,881 30,331 71,212                 56,950 
Capital Outlay  3,276,430        1,633,139        1,642,011        3,275,150           964,000           
Renewal & Replacement 365,000           98,470 266,530           365,000 - 

Sub-Total Plant Operations 9,240,733        4,477,321        4,586,913        9,064,234           6,851,625        

Page #21

Agenda Page 113



ADOPTED ACTUAL PROJECTED TOTAL PROPOSED
DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU NEXT PROJECTED THRU BUDGET

FY 2018-2019 4/30/2019 5 Months 9/30/2019 FY 2019-2020

FIELD OPERATIONS

Salaries and Wages 748,175           374,332           374,332           748,665 786,613           
Special Pay 1,459                1,245                - 1,246 1,405                
FICA Taxes 57,235 28,428 28,428 56,856 60,176 
Pension Expense 89,780 42,813 42,813 85,626 94,394 
Health Insurance 206,450           101,584           101,584           203,168 247,480           
Workers Comp. Insurance 34,864 24,645 24,645 49,291                 49,556 
OPEB 0 - - - 2,723                
Water Quality Testing 1,000                - 1,000 1,000 1,000                
Naturescape Irrigation Service 4,679                4,819                - 4,820 4,970                
Telephone Expense 10,800 7,035                5,640 12,676 13,950 
Electric Expense 114,735           52,665 53,329 105,994 114,480           
Rent Expense 17,480 1,526                15,954 17,480                 9,500                
Rent Expense - SCADA 56,040 32,690 23,350 56,041                 56,040 
Insurance 22,206 9,131                13,075 22,206                 24,000 
Repairs and Maintenance 117,468           41,372 103,060           144,433 216,000           
Lift Stations 168,850           59,533 109,317           168,850 168,850           
Generators 26,083 11,682 14,401 26,083                 33,080 
Meters 49,340 14,470 34,870 49,341                 60,680 
Office Supplies 1,680                409 1,271                1,680 1,680                
Operating Supplies 61,295 38,285 23,010 61,296                 57,190 
Uniforms         5,820                2,475                3,345                5,820 5,820                
Motor Fuels     28,580 12,778 15,802 28,580                 22,860 
Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits 13,296 6,408                6,888                13,296                 13,300 
Capital Outlay 1,324,000        650,911           673,089           1,324,000           381,000           
Renewal & Replacement - - - - - 

Sub-Total Field Operations 3,161,315        1,519,236        1,669,203        3,188,451           2,426,747        

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES 14,496,024      7,038,785        7,243,925        14,282,722         11,473,351      

Required Reserve for R&R - - - - - 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES  & 
RESERVES 14,496,024      7,038,785        7,243,925        14,282,722         11,473,351      

AVAILABLE FOR DEBT SERVICE 3,103,546        2,220,277        883,268           3,103,533           3,099,534        

Debt Coverage Required         1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10

Debt Service Requirement      1.00 2,821,405        2,821,405           2,817,758        

Projected Surplus .10 282,141           282,141 281,776           

TOTAL DEBT SERVICES + SURPLUS 3,103,546        3,103,546           3,099,534        

Page #22

Agenda Page 114



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

REVENUES 

Water & Sewer represent 93% of the District’s total income. Those utility rates have not 
increased since year 2012, and as a result, revenues will remain almost the same.  

Revenues by Sources 

48.9%
WATER

44.3%
WASTEWATER

2.2% DELINQUENT 
FEES

2.8%R&R 1.8% OTHERS

Water Revenue Sewer Revenue Delinquent Fees Renewal & Replacement others

Page #23

Agenda Page 115



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

Water & Sewer Revenues 

The District will use reserve funds in the amount of $1,705,236 to help offset infrastructure projects 

required by Plant & Field departments.  

 Water Revenue 

The estimated amount that will be billed to users of the water system of the District is determined 

by the utility rate agreement.  Based on prior year revenues the water revenues are projected to be 

$6,467,008. 

Sewer Revenue 

The estimated amount that will be billed to users of the wastewater system of the District is 

determined by the utility rate agreement. Based on prior year revenues the sewer revenues are 

projected to be $5,852,977.  

Standby Revenue 

The standby charge is applied to each lot, parcel or tract, which has been reserved for water and 

sewer capacity.  The standby charges for this Fiscal Year are based on 13 units per month @ $20 per 

unit.  The amount projected for this Fiscal Year is $3,120.  

Processing Fees 

A processing fee of $20 is charged to each new utility account.   Based on the District’s history of 

new accounts, the projected amount for this fiscal year is $12,000. 

Lien Revenue Fees 

The Board adopted a $25 charge for an estoppel letter. Based on the prior years’ history of estoppel 

letters, the estimated amount for this fiscal year is $9,000. 

Delinquent Fees 

The District levies a $25 charge for each month the account is delinquent until the account is 

current. The projected amount for this fiscal year is $290,000. 

Page #24

Agenda Page 116



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

REVENUES (Continued) 

Contract Utility Billing Services 

The District contracts out utility billing services for the benefit of cost sharing.  This fiscal year the 

District expects to receive $62,602. 

Contract HR & Payroll Services 

The District provides human resource and payroll services to other Districts based on fees 

established under interlocal agreements.  Budgeted fees are $13,289. 

Facility Connection Fees 

Represents the amount collected for new connections.  The amount projected for this Fiscal Year is 

zero and is based on no new connections. 

Meter Fees 

Represents the amount collected for meter fees based on the size of the meter.  This Fiscal Year the 

amount projected is zero. 

Line Connection Fees 

Represents the amount collected for new connections. The amount projected for this Fiscal Year is 

zero and is based on no new connections. 

Interest Income (Restricted)  

Interest is earned on restricted bond related accounts and managed by Trust accounts. The District 

has zero control over performance, and no interest is being budgeted. 

Interest Income (Operations) 

Interest is earned on cash balances in the District’s funds on deposit in checking, money market, and 

investment accounts. Interest income on these is being budgeted for $65,000. 

Page #25

Agenda Page 117



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

REVENUES (Continued) 

Rent Revenue 

This line item represents the lease of office space to perform work on other Districts. The total 

revenue from this source is $65,203.   

Technology Sharing Revenue 

The District owns an IBM AS-400 computer system as well as a suite of proprietary software 

programs. Technology sharing is the revenue associated with the performance of duties on the 

Districts system, phone, fax, ISP and other technology hardware, used for the benefit of the District. 

The amount being reimbursed by other funds is $15,450. 

Miscellaneous Revenues 

Represents miscellaneous fees charged to customers for NSF, meter boxes, repairs and other 

services provided to customer by the District. Based on prior years’ experience, this amount is 

projected to be $12,000.  

Renewal & Replacement 

Funds accumulated in prior years are used in the budget year for payment of various renewal and 

rehabilitation projects. The amount projected for this Fiscal Year is zero. 

Page #26

Agenda Page 118



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES  

A contractual increase in independent attorney services, merchant fees, health care insurance and 

website requirements account mainly for the 4.8% proposed increase in the total administrative 

budget. 

Salaries and Wages 

The total amount of budgeted wages for this Fiscal Year is $1,011,726. 

Special Pay 

Special pay is a holiday bonus based on the employee’s number of years of service.  This year’s 

expense is $2,534.  

FICA Taxes  

FICA tax is established by law and the current rate is 7.65%.  Based on salaries of $1,011,726 the 

amount projected for FICA tax is $77,397.  

Pension Expense 

The pension plan was established whereby the District makes contributions on behalf of each 

employee with other funds available to match contributions made by the employee to the deferred 

compensation plan.  Based on salaries of $1,011,726 the amount projected for pension expense is 

$121,408. 

Health Insurance  

The District offers each employee Health, Life, Dental and Disability Insurance.  The amount 

budgeted is $233,182. 

Worker’s Compensation Insurance 

The District Worker’s Compensation policy is currently with Florida Insurance Alliance. The projected 

amount for this Fiscal Year is $3,423. 

Unemployment Compensation 

Unemployment compensation is expected to be $4,000. 

Page #27

Agenda Page 119



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES (Continued) 

OPEB Expense 

Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) are the benefits that an employee will begin to receive at 

the start of retirement. This does not include pension benefits paid to the retired employee (GASB 

Statements 74 and 75).  The budgeted amount is estimated to be $2,862. 

Engineering Fees 

The District currently has a contract with Globaltech, to provide general engineering services not 

related to or associated with any specific capital improvement project. The contract includes 

preparation for monthly meetings, monthly reporting, and responses to requests from the Board. 

Based on anticipated general engineering work the fees are not expected to exceed $33,600. 

Trustee Fees/Other Debt Expense 

This expense includes charges associated with the currently existing outstanding bond issues. 

Pending bond fees & arbitrage costs are not included in this listing. 

Trustee Fees (2016 Series) $10,120 

AMTEC Report   600 

Total Expenses     $10,720 

Legal Fees 

The District currently has a contract with Lewis, Longman and Walker, PA as legal counsel for the 

District.  This contract includes preparation for monthly board meetings, contract review, etc. In 

addition, the District expects to have additional expenses with changes to District codification.  This 

year’s budget is not expected to exceed $60,000. 

Page #28

Agenda Page 120



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES (Continued) 

Special Consulting Services 

The District may need to engage a consultant that specializes in legislative codification matters that 

would amend the current charter.  Included in those matters are bidding threshold requirements, 

efficiencies, gains, and benefits inherent in contract administration.  Other consulting services may 

be incurred for special projects as needed.  The anticipated cost for all of these services is $86,000. 

Travel & Per Diem (Board) 

This expense represents travel expenses for the Board of Supervisor ‘s.  The budgeted amount for 

this fiscal year is $4,500. 

Annual Audit 

The District’s auditing firm is Keefe, McCullough & Co., LLP. Based on the current activity level this 

amount should not exceed $12,150. 

Actuarial Computation - OPEB 

Florida state statutes require the employer to make health coverage available to retirees at the 

employer’s group rate.  GASB 75 requires a periodic actuarial assessment of the cost and liability 

associated with these benefits.  The budgeted amount for this fiscal year is $2,700. 

Management Fees 

This service includes management and financial advisory services provided to the District under the 

Management Contract with Severn Trent Services.  This fiscal year the expense is $88,552. 

Telephone Expense 

Telephone Service, fax machine and long-distance calls are included under this expense. Based on 

the prior years’ experience, the amount should not exceed $13,835.  

Page #29

Agenda Page 121



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES (Continued) 

Postage 

Overnight deliveries, correspondence, utility bills, etc. 

Utility Billing  31,200 

Administrative     2,400 

Special Mailings  3,000 

Total                                       $36,600 

Printing and Binding 

Stationary, utility billing forms, personnel forms, envelopes, photocopies, etc. 

Utility Billing 10,000 

Administrative   2,970 

Accounting    1,300 

   Annual Water Quality Report    3,500 

Personnel Department  1,600 

Marketing Materials  2,600 

 Total      $21,970 

Electric Expense  

This expense includes the electric service for the Administrative Building.  Based on prior years’ 

expense the projected amount for this Fiscal Year is $12,960. 

Page #30

Agenda Page 122



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES (Continued) 

Rentals and Leases 

The following charges are being budgeted in the fiscal year: 

Copier Lease  $    2,290 

Mail Machine   785 

Total                                                        $    3,075  

Insurance 

The District retains Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors as our Insurance Agent, who on a yearly basis 

arranges the placement of the District insurance for property, general liability, and inland marine 

coverage.  The expected amount for this Fiscal Year should not exceed $16,520. 

Repair and Maintenance 

The following expenses are anticipated for the budget year. 

Pest Control $  1,920 

A/C Maintenance & Repairs    13,860 

Carpet Cleaning   3,680 

Title & Baths Cleaning   700 

Building small supplies/materials  1,300 

Window Cleaning   1,440 

Marble Polishing   1,600 

Other Repairs & Maintenance  1,960 

Total $ 26,460 

Page #31

Agenda Page 123



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES (Continued) 

Legal Advertising 

The District does most of its legal advertising in the Sun-Sentinel. Expenses include monthly 

meetings, special meetings, public hearings, request for bids, etc.  The estimated amount should not 

exceed $4,500. 

Other Current Charges 

Bank charges and any other miscellaneous expenses that occur during the year as follows: 

Meeting Refreshments $  280 

Commercial Bank Charges   6,000 

Security Signature Stamps      300 

Phone System Computer Boards  5,000 

Monitoring Fees  775 

Employment & Drug Screening   1,800 

   Other Contractual Services   1,560 

Cleaners/Pest Control/etc.    1,200 

Miscellaneous Charges   12,995 

TOTAL  $ 29,910 

Merchant Fees 

The District is charged monthly administrative fees as well as individual transaction fees on all credit 

card payments we receive.  Based on last years’ experience the projected amount should not exceed 

$78,520. 

Page #32

Agenda Page 124



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES (Continued) 

Computer/Technology Expenses 

This represents software, anti-virus, web hosting, tech services & additional computer project 

systems and support for this fiscal year which amount should not exceed $113,835. 

Employment Ads 

Recruiting Expenses for qualified candidates for Plant Operators, Field and Administration 

Personnel. Based on prior years’ experience the amount should not exceed $13,550. 

Toilet Rebates 

Utility bills are credited $99 for those customers who install a qualifying toilet under the rebate 

program established by the District.  Budgeted rebates reflect a total of 150 toilets for $14,850. 

Office Supplies 

Accounting, Utility Billing and Administrative Supplies such as printer cartridges, file cabinets, 

computer supplies, file folders, pens, pencils, cleaning supplies, paper products, etc.  Based on 

historical experience the amount should not exceed $4,000. 

Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits 

This item includes professional publications such as GAAP Guide and Florida Statutes. This expense 

also covers the cost for continuing education requirements and license renewal, management 

training, and training related to human resources.  The amount should not exceed $12,000. 

Promotional Expenses 

The District is budgeting $14,640 for the budget year. 

Page #33

Agenda Page 125



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES (Continued) 

Capital Outlay 

The budgeted amount of $23,000 is being provided for the purchase of office carpeting (budgeted 

but not completed on previous year) and equipment. 

Page #34

Agenda Page 126



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

EXPENDITURES - PLANT OPERATIONS 

Since overall funding remains unchanged from the current fiscal year, a decrease in capital projects 

compared with previous year is reflected in this section.  

An increase in Repairs & Maintenance is due to the electrical upgrades suggested by the Arc Flash 

study presented by independent Engineers along with generators and wellfield maintenance and 

repairs. 

Salaries and Wages 

The total amount of budgeted wages for this Fiscal Year is $1,700,446. 

Special Pay 

Special pay is a holiday bonus based on the employee’s number of years of service.  This year’s 

expense is $2,703.   

FICA Taxes 

FICA tax is established by law and the current rate is 7.65%.  Based on salaries of $1,700,446 the 

amount projected for FICA tax is $130,084. 

Pension Expense 

The pension plan was established whereby the District makes contributions on behalf of each 

employee with other funds available to match contributions made by the employee to the deferred 

compensation plan. Based on salaries of $1,700,446 the amount projected for pension expense is 

$201,000. 

Health Insurance  

The District offers each employee Health, Life, Dental and Disability Insurance.  The amount 

budgeted is $354,297. 

Worker’s Compensation Insurance 

Worker’s compensation insurance is being budgeted for $93,877. 

Page #35

Agenda Page 127



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

EXPENDITURES - PLANT OPERATIONS (Continued) 

OPEB Expense 

Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) calculation budgeted amount is based on previous year 

calculation and estimated to be $4,437. 

Water Quality Testing 

Water Quality Testing is provided by Florida Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. This Fiscal Year 

the projected amount for water quality testing is $68,475. 

Telephone Expense 

Telephone charges for this Fiscal Year include Bellsouth phone service for Water and Wastewater 

offices and Sprint phone services.  The projected amount for this fiscal year is $8,900.  

Electric Expense 

The electric requirements for the plant facility and wells are based upon the operating history.  

Based on prior year’s expense the projected amount for this Fiscal Year is $698,830.  

Rentals and Leases 

The District is budgeting $15,500 for miscellaneous equipment rentals. 

Insurance 

The District retains Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors as our Insurance Agent, who on a yearly basis 

arranges the placement of the District insurance for property, general liability, and inland marine 

coverage.   The expense should not exceed $166,630. 

Repairs & Maintenance - General 

Repair and maintenance expenses anticipated to be spent in the fiscal year are as follows: 

Page #36

Agenda Page 128



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

EXPENDITURES - PLANT OPERATIONS (Continued) 

Water Department  

Flow meters  $15,000 

Sulfuric acid tank cleaning, inspection & repair   60,000 

Electrical upgrades    75,000 

Interconnect usage    10,000 

R&M general     18,000 

Air conditioning   6,590 

Vehicle maintenance   4,000 

Generator maintenance & repairs    23,000 

Vibration Analysis Program    41,800 

Well & Wellfield Maintenance 164,080 

Instrument and Control Repairs/Calibration         56,000 

Facility Maintenance    36,700 

Total Water   $ 510,170 

Page #37

Agenda Page 129



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

EXPENDITURES - PLANT OPERATIONS (Continued) 

Wastewater Department 

Electrical upgrades   $120,000 

Annual certification   2,500 

Sludge Truck Maintenance & Repair   1,900 

Air conditioning  10,690  

Vehicle Maintenance   2,500 

Vibration Analysis Program   9,000 

Lift Stations   2,500 

Generator Maintenance & Repair  26,675 

Deep Well Maintenance 38,000 

Instruments & Controls/ Meter Calibration 43,480 

Tank Cleaning  55,000 

Paint interior Plant C  66,000 

Electrical breaker, blower parts & repairs 40,000 

Other Facility Maintenance    5,000 

Mechanical injection well    500 

Total Wastewater    $ 423,745 

Page #38

Agenda Page 130



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

EXPENDITURES - PLANT OPERATIONS (Continued) 

Maintenance 

R&M general  $6,080 

Vehicle Maintenance    3,000 

R&M trash pick up    5,720 

Lawn Maintenance Contract 52,000 

Other Facility Maintenance   7,000  

Total Maintenance          $73,800 

TOTAL REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE - PLANT $1,007,715 

Filters for Water Plant 

Budgeted replacement costs for filters, membranes and interconnectors for the Water Plant are 

$678,290. 

Sludge Management - Sewer 

Sludge removal costs are budgeted for $150,000. 

Chemicals 

Products used in the process of Water & Wastewater treatments. The amount projected to be spent 

in this fiscal year is $337,995. 

Operating Supplies - General 

General operating supplies include laboratory chemicals and miscellaneous tools and equipment. 

The projected amount is $98,675. 

Page #39

Agenda Page 131



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

EXPENDITURES - PLANT OPERATIONS (Continued) 

Office Supplies 

Paper, pens, folders, and other office supplies.  The projected amount for this fiscal year is $3,635. 

Uniforms 

Uniform purchases, rentals and safety boot allowances are budgeted at $9,775. 

Motor Fuels 

Motor fuels include gasoline and diesel fuel needed for the operation of auxiliary generators.  The 

projected amount is $99,411. 

Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits 

This expense represents costs for license renewals, subscriptions, and employee licensing, books 

and schooling required to maintain licenses to operate for plant employees.  The projected amount 

for this fiscal year is $56,950. 

Capital Outlay 

The District is budgeting amounts for addition of VFD’s to wells, post flush recovery reduction, high 

service pump motor replacement, building drainage improvements, water blower, interconnect 

study, Plant C repairs and tools for maintenance.  The total amount budgeted is $964,000. 

Renewal & Replacement 

The District is budgeting $0 for this concept this fiscal year. 

Page #40

Agenda Page 132



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

EXPENDITURES - FIELD OPERATIONS 

Repairs & Maintenance includes upgrades in the Electrical systems. In general, total expenditures 

decreased due to fewer capital projects.  

Salaries and Wages 

The total amount of budgeted wages for this fiscal year is $786,613. 

Special Pay 

Special pay is a holiday bonus based on the employee’s number of years of service.  This year’s 

expense is $1,405. 

FICA Taxes 

FICA tax is established by law and currently is 7.65%.  Based on salaries of $786,613 the amount 

projected for FICA tax is $60,176. 

Pension Expense 

The pension plan was established whereby the District makes contributions on behalf of each 

employee with other funds available to match contributions made by the employee to the deferred 

compensation plan. Based on salaries of $786,613 the amount projected for pension expense is 

$94,394. 

Health Insurance  

The District offers each employee Health, Life, Dental and Disability Insurance.  The amount 

budgeted is $247,480. 

Worker’s Compensation Insurance 

The District Worker’s Compensation policy is currently with Florida Insurance Alliance.  The 

projected amount is $49,556. 

Page #41

Agenda Page 133



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

EXPENDITURES - FIELD OPERATIONS (Continued) 

OPEB Expense 

Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) calculation budgeted amount is based on previous year 

calculation and estimated to be $2,723. 

Water Quality Testing 

Water Quality Testing is provided by Florida Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. This Fiscal Year 

the projected amount for water quality testing is $1,000. 

Naturescape Irrigation Service 

Annual fee of $4,970 is paid to Broward County for the operation of the Naturescape irrigation 

service.  

Telephone Expense 

Telephone and fax machine are budgeted annually.  Based on prior year’s experience the amount 

should not exceed $13,950.  

Electric Expense 

The electric requirements (for Lift Stations) are based upon the operating history.  Based on prior 

years’ expense the projected amount for this fiscal year is $114,480. 

Rent Expense 

Equipment rental, other than for SCADA, is budgeted for $9,500. 

Rent Expense-SCADA 

The District will install and rent components for telemetry lift-station operation and monitoring for 

$56,040. 

Page #42

Agenda Page 134



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

EXPENDITURES - FIELD OPERATIONS (Continued) 

Insurance 

The District retains Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors as our Insurance Agent, who on a yearly basis 

arranges the placement of the District insurance for property, general liability, and inland marine 

coverage.  The expected amount for this Fiscal year should not exceed $24,000. 

Repair and Maintenance 

Following is a listing of the different repairs and maintenance needed for field operations 

maintenance. 

GIS Services $ 37,500 

Backhoe maintenance     8,000 

Jet machine service    4,000 

R&M general    5,000 

Electrical upgrades  20,000 

Air Conditioning    3,500 

Asphalt improvements  30,000 

R&M Facilities    4,500 

Backflow certifications & replacements    9,500 

Valve replacement & maintenance  10,000 

Streets & landscape  46,000 

Hydrants   18,000 

Vehicles  20,000 

Total Repairs & Maintenance      $216,000 

Page #43

Agenda Page 135



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

EXPENDITURES - FIELD OPERATIONS (Continued) 

Lift Stations 

This expense is to cover lift stations maintenance and repairs including new pumps and electrical 

supplies. The District operates 41 Lift Stations on the Field. The projected amount for this fiscal year 

is $168,850. 

Generators 

Amount projected for expenses related to Portable Generators including services and repairs. The 

District owns 7 Portable Generators. Budget amount should not exceed $33,080. 

Meters 

This program was setup to replace old meters.  The projected amount for this fiscal year includes 

new connections and supplies costs. The amount being budgeted for new connections is $60,680. 

Office Supplies 

Paper, pens, folders, and other office supplies.  The projected amount for this fiscal year is $1,680. 

Operating Supplies 

General operating supplies include laboratory chemicals and miscellaneous tools and equipment. 

The projected amount is $57,190. 

Uniforms 

Uniform purchases and rentals and safety boot allowances are budgeted at $5,820. 

Motor Fuels   

Motor fuels include gasoline and diesel fuel needed for the operation of portable generators.  The 

projected amount is $22,860. 

Page #44

Agenda Page 136



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

EXPENDITURES - FIELD OPERATIONS (Continued) 

Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits 

This expense represents the cost for license renewals, subscriptions, and employee licensing, books 

and schooling required to maintain their license to operate. The projected amount is $13,300. 

Capital Outlay 

The District is budgeting for projects such as the purchase of various field related equipment, lift 

station camera work and rehab of lift stations. The expected amount for this Fiscal year should not 

exceed $381,000.  

Renewal & Replacement 

No amounts are being budgeted for FYE 2019/2020. 

Page #45

Agenda Page 137



  CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT “PROPOSED BUDGET 2019/2020”  

DEBT SERVICE 

During FY 2015/2016, Coral Springs Improvement District refinanced Series 2007 Bonds with 

Refunded Revenue Bonds Series 2016 in the amount of $42,830,000 with a rate of 3.05%.  

$38 million were used to the contruction project of water plant and $4 million has been set aside to 

take care of interest during the capitalized period, and to ensure those payments are available to 

the bondholders.  

Debt service schedule represents the amount of money required to make payments on the principal 

and interest on the outstanding loan.   

The schedule below reflects principal and interest obligations for the new fiscal year. 

Period Ending Principal Interest Total Debt

October 1 Amount Amount Service

2017 1,075,000 928,935 2,003,935 

2018 1,545,000 1,273,528 2,818,528 

2019 1,595,000 1,226,405 2,821,405 

2020 1,640,000 1,177,758 2,817,758 

2021 1,695,000 1,127,738 2,822,738 

2022 1,745,000 1,076,040 2,821,040 

2023 1,795,000 1,022,817 2,817,817 

2024 1,850,000 968,070 2,818,070 

2025 1,910,000 911,645 2,821,645 

2026 1,965,000 853,390 2,818,390 

2027 2,025,000 793,457 2,818,457 

2028 2,090,000 731,695 2,821,695 

2029 2,150,000 667,950 2,817,950 

2030 2,220,000 602,375 2,822,375 

2031 17,530,000 534,665 18,064,665 

42,830,000 13,896,468 56,726,468 

 

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

2016 Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds

Page #46

Agenda Page 138



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ninth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 139



Agenda Page 140



Agenda Page 141



Agenda Page 142



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tenth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 143



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10A. 
  

Agenda Page 144



Agenda Page 145



Agenda Page 146



 

 

 

 

 

10B. 
  

Agenda Page 147



Agenda Page 148



Agenda Page 149



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eleventh Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 150



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11A. 
  

Agenda Page 151



Agenda Page 152



Agenda Page 153



Agenda Page 154



Agenda Page 155



Agenda Page 156



Agenda Page 157



Agenda Page 158



Agenda Page 159



Agenda Page 160



Agenda Page 161



Agenda Page 162



Agenda Page 163



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11B. 
  

Agenda Page 164



 

  

AMENDMENT 1 TO 

WORK AUTHORIZATION 152 

Globaltech No. 151116 

 

Pursuant to the provisions contained in the "Contract for Professional Engineering 

Consulting and Design-Build Services on a Continuing Contract Basis " between 

the CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as 

"OWNER", and Globaltech, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "FIRM", dated July 1, 

2012 (hereinafter referred to as "AGREEMENT"), this Work Authorization 

authorizes the FIRM to provide services under the terms and conditions set forth 

herein and in the AGREEMENT, which is incorporated herein by reference as 

though set forth in full. 

 

The OWNER desires design-build services related to the Membrane Plant ORP 

Analyzer, hereinafter referred to as the “Specific Project”. 

 

Section 1 – Terms 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

Section 2 – Scope of Work 

Amendment 1 is reimbursing funds for unspent allowance of $2,000.00.  

 

Section 3 – Location 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

Section 4 – Deliverables 

 NO CHANGE. 

 
Section 5 – Time of Performance 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

 

Agenda Page 165



 

  

Section 6 – Method and Amount of Compensation 

This Amendment No. 1 to Work Authorization 152 decreases the $45,347.00 

contract value by $-2,000.00, to a new final contract amount of $43,347.00. 

 
Section 7 – Application for Progress Payment 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

Section 8 – Responsibilities 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

Section 9 – Insurance 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

Section 10 – Level of Service 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

Section 11 – Indemnification 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment to a Work Authorization, consisting of 

three (3) pages has been caused fully executed on behalf of the FIRM by its duly 

authorized officer, and the OWNER has the same to be duly name and in its behalf, 

effective as of the date herein above written. 

 

Agenda Page 166



 

  

 

 

_____________________________ 

Signature of Witness 

 

_____________________________ 

Printed name of Witness 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

_________________________________ 

Signature of President 

 

__________________________________ 

Printed Name of President 

 

_________________________________ 

Date 

Approved as to form and legality 

 

_________________________________ 

District Counsel 

State of Florida 

County of Palm Beach 

 

The foregoing instrument was 

acknowledged before me on this 

 

____ day of July, 2019 by  

 

Troy L. Lyn, P.E. 

who is personally known to me OR 

produced __________ as identification. 

 

____________________________ 

Signature of Notary  

FIRM 

 

Globaltech, Inc. 
 

Company 

 

_____________________________________ 

Signature 

Troy L. Lyn, P.E., Executive Vice President  

Name and Title (typed or printed) 

 

July   , 2019 

Date 

 

Agenda Page 167



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11C 

Agenda Page 168



  
      1 of 10 

WORK AUTHORIZATION 

CSID WA No. 162 

Globaltech No. 151175 

 

Pursuant to the provisions contained in the "Contract for Professional Engineering 

Consulting and Design-Build Services on a Continuing Contract Basis " between 

the CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as 

"OWNER", and  Globaltech, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "FIRM", dated July 1, 

2012  (hereinafter referred to as "AGREEMENT"), this Work Authorization 

authorizes the FIRM to provide services under the terms and conditions set forth 

herein and in the AGREEMENT, which is incorporated herein by reference as 

though set forth in full. 

 

The OWNER desires design-build services related to the CSID WTP Well No. 9 

Control Panel Replacement, hereinafter referred to as the “Specific Project”. 

 

Section 1 – Terms 

FIRM shall be defined as an individual, corporation or contractor having a direct 

contract with the OWNER or with any other subcontractor in the performance of a 

part of the work contracted for under the terms of this Work Authorization with the 

OWNER. 

 

Section 2 – Scope of Work 

The OWNER desires to replace the existing well motor control at Raw Water Well 

No. 9 with a new control panel complete with variable frequency drive (VFD).  The 

new control panel will be built to UL standards, come with complete schematic 

drawings, and allow future integrators and contractors to identify and make panel 

modifications with proper documentation.   

The new VFD will allow CSID staff to control a range of flows coming out of the 

well, allowing for a variable level of production. The existing motor control is an 

across the line contactor style starter.   

Agenda Page 169



  
      2 of 10 

The existing control panel is inadequately sized and unequipped to handle the 

added heat gain from the new VFD, and the panel has been modified/retrofitted to 

the point that it could be considered unsafe to work on. Replacing the existing well 

motor control panel will eliminate these safety hazards.    

The new well control panel will be equipped with a heat exchanger and sun 

shielding, be painted white, and be appropriately sized to house the new VFD.  A 

new PLC and I/O modules will be included to permit control of the VFD.  Plant 

SCADA and PLC updates will be made to give CSID staff remote access and 

control and the local PLC will be, likewise, programmed with logic for control and 

status.  

 

Task 1 – Engineering Services  

This task includes project management and engineering services required 

to complete the project.   

 

Engineering and Project Management 

1. Attend preliminary scoping meetings with the OWNER to assist in 

preliminary design parameters and overall scope. 

2. Meet with the OWNER, to discuss the preliminary design review 

comments.   

3. Prepare detailed construction schedule to include as a minimum; 

design, site mobilization, detailed construction activities, scheduled shut 

downs and durations, equipment/material delivery times, testing, and 

startup and commissioning. 

4. Coordinate material and equipment purchase and subcontractors. 

5. Review, administer, and track equipment submittals.   

6. Schedule and conduct meetings, inspections, and testing with 

OWNER’s staff. 

7. Attend progress meetings and coordination meetings 

8. Oversee construction activities enforcing the conditions of the design. 

Agenda Page 170



  
      3 of 10 

9. Conduct Substantial Completion inspection.  Develop punch-list items in 

association with OWNER.  

10. Conduct Final Completion inspection meeting and site walk through with 

OWNER. 

 

Task 2 – Construction Services 

This task entails installing a new motor control unit and cabinet at Raw 

Water Production Well No. 9.  The work, in general consists of the following:   

 

1. Furnish and install new 60hp rated VFD control panel and new conduit 

and wiring to existing RTU panel.     

2. Extend existing fencing as required to enclose new VFD control panel. 

3. Terminate all required wiring. 

4. Modify existing well PLC with required I/O modules and logic to control 

and monitor new VFD 

5. Furnish and install conduit and wiring as required. 

6. Furnish and install new SS pump terminal junction box. 

 
Assumptions 
 
Assumptions for the project are as follows: 
 
 No lighting modifications are included. 

 No DEP permits are required 

 No Building Department permits are required 

 Working hours will be Monday through Friday from approximately 8:00 

AM until 5:00 PM. 

 The existing Plant PLC and SCADA to control and monitor new VFD will 

be modified by others contracted by FIRM.  

 No design drawings are included. 

 Tree/vegetation trimming in front of proposed new VFD panel location 

(if needed) shall be performed by CSID. 

 OWNER will store panel within WTP following offloading by FIRM. 

Agenda Page 171



  
      4 of 10 

 

Section 3 – Location 

The services to be performed by the FIRM shall be at the Raw Water Well No.9.  

 

Section 4 – Deliverables 

The FIRM will provide the following Deliverables to OWNER: 

 Submittals for materials/equipment.  

 Construction Improvements 

 O&M manuals for the equipment of Improvements 

 
Section 5 – Time of Performance 

Project will commence after execution of this Work Authorization and a Notice to 

Proceed is issued by OWNER. The FIRM and OWNER agree to the following 

schedule: 

 

Task       Time Elapsed to Completion 
Notice to Proceed (NTP) 0 Days 
Final Design 45 Days after NTP 
Procurement 165 Days after NTP  
Construction of Improvements 195 Days after NTP 

Close out 215 Days after NTP 

 

Section 6 – Method and Amount of Compensation 

1. The FIRM shall be paid by the OWNER in accordance with the Florida’s 

Prompt Payment Act Florida Statute 218.70-79 and in accordance with the 

payment method as set forth in Section 6 of the AGREEMENT.  The 

calculations shall begin using the date the invoice was received.   

2. Total job price:  $96,999.00.   

3. On the terms contained in the FIRM’s said proposal for the doing of said 

work and the said award therefore, and the specifications herein specifically 

referred to and made a part of this contract.  

4. The cost for the above scope of services is a lump sum (LS).  The LS is 

based on the materials, methods, and assumptions presented in the scope 

Agenda Page 172



  
      5 of 10 

of services and may be adjusted based on final detail design and alternative 

selections or omissions.  The LS shall not be greater than the stated amount 

unless there is an approved increase in the scope of services.   

5. An allowance of $2,000 is included in the total fee.  The allowance will not 

be accessed without approval by OWNER.  Unused allowance will be 

returned at the completion of the project. 

6. A Budget Summary for the above LS is provided in Attachment A.   

 
Section 7 – Application for Progress Payment 

1. Unless otherwise prescribed by law, at the end of each month, the FIRM 

shall submit to the OWNER for review, an Application for Progress Payment 

filled out and signed by the FIRM covering the Work completed as of the 

date of the Application and accompanied by such supporting documentation 

as is required by the AGREEMENT.  

2. The Application for Progress Payment shall identify the amount of the FIRM 

Total Earnings to Date based upon value of original contract Work 

performed to date as approved by fully executed Change Orders.  

3. Payment shall be based upon percentage of work completed based upon 

the approved schedule of values. Retainage in the amount of 10% will be 

withheld on the calculated value of any work, with the exception of stored 

materials which may be paid at the supplier's invoiced cost. At FIRM's 

request, after 50% completion of the work has been achieved, the OWNER 

will implement a reduction in retainage to 5% of all future pay requests. If 

retainage is reduced, FIRM may not withhold more than 5% retainage from 

subcontractors or suppliers and will be required to certify compliance with 

F.S. 218.70 et seq on each subsequent pay application. Notwithstanding 

the foregoing, in no instance can the amount retained be less than the value 

of OWNER's good faith claims plus the value of the work the OWNER 

determines remains to be put in place or required to be performed as 

remedial activities. For the purposes of this section, 50% completion shall 

be that point in time when OWNER determines that half of the Work 

required by the Contract has been completed. In no event shall the Work 

Agenda Page 173



  
      6 of 10 

be determined to be 50% completed before the OWNER has paid 50% of 

the Contract amount and 50% of the Contract time has expired. The amount 

of previous Pay Estimate payments shall then be subtracted to equal the 

Balance Due during the Pay Estimate period.  

4. When the OWNER reduces the retainage to five percent (5%), FIRM must 

obtain the written consent of the Surety Companies furnishing the required 

Public Construction Bond on consent forms provided by the OWNER. The 

OWNER may reinstate the retainage up to ten percent (10%) if the OWNER 

determines, at its discretion, that the FIRM is not making satisfactory 

progress toward final completion of the Work or where there is other specific 

cause for such withholding.  

5. Partial payment may be made for the delivered cost of stored materials 

planned for incorporation into the Work, provided such materials meet the 

requirements of this Contract, the Contract Drawings, and the 

Specifications, and are delivered and suitably stored at the project site, or 

at another location acceptable to the OWNER.  Such material must be 

stored in a secure manor acceptable to the OWNER, and in accordance 

with the manufacturer's recommendations.   

6. The delivered cost of such stored or stockpiled materials may be included 

in any subsequent application for payment provided the FIRM meets the 

following conditions:  

a. An applicable purchase order or supplier's invoice is provided listing 

the materials in detail, the cost of each item, and identifies this 

specific contract by name. 

b. The materials are fully insured against loss or damage (from 

whatever source) or disappearance prior to incorporation into the 

Work.  

c. Stored materials approved for payment by the OWNER shall not be 

removed from the designated storage area except for incorporation 

into the Work. 

Agenda Page 174



  
      7 of 10 

d. Evidence that the FIRM has verified quantity and quality of the 

materials delivered (verified packing list). 

7. It is further agreed between the parties that the transfer of title and the 

OWNER's payment for any stored or stockpiled materials pursuant to 

these General Conditions, and any applicable provisions of the 

Supplementary General Conditions, shall in no way relieve the FIRM of 

the responsibility of ensuring the correctness of those materials and for 

furnishing and placing such materials in accordance with the 

requirements of this Contract, the Contract Drawings, the Technical 

Specifications, and any approved changes thereto. 

8. The following monthly Application for Progress Payment shall be 

accompanied by Bills of Sale, copies of paid invoices, releases of lien, 

or other documentation warranting that the FIRM has received the 

stored materials and equipment free and clear of all liens, charges, 

security interests, and encumbrances (which are hereinafter in these 

General Conditions referred to as "Liens") and evidence that the stored 

materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance 

and other arrangements to protect the OWNER's interest therein, all of 

which shall be satisfactory to the OWNER.  

9. The FIRM shall warrant and guarantee that title to all Work, materials, 

and equipment covered by an Application for Progress Payment, 

whether incorporated in the Work or not, will pass to the OWNER no 

later than the time of Final Payment free and clear of all liens or other 

encumbrances.  

10. Progress Payments shall be made in accordance with the Local 

Government Prompt Payment Act. In the event any dispute with respect 

to any payment or pay request cannot be resolved between the FIRM 

and OWNER's project staff, FIRM may, in accordance with the 

alternative dispute resolution requirements of Florida Statute section 

218.72, et seq, demand in writing a meeting with and review by the 

OWNER’S (agency) director. In the absence of the agency director, a 

Agenda Page 175



  
      8 of 10 

deputy director may conduct the meeting and review. Such meeting and 

review shall occur within ten (10) business days of receipt by OWNER 

of FIRM’s written demand. The OWNER’s manager, shall issue a written 

decision on the dispute within ten (10) business days of such meeting. 

This decision shall be deemed the OWNER's final decision for the 

purposes of the Local Government Prompt Payment Act.  

11. The OWNER may refuse to make payment of the full amount because 

claims have been made against the OWNER on account of the FIRM's 

performance of the Work, or because Liens have been filed in 

connection with the Work, or there are other items entitling the OWNER 

to a credit against the amount recommended, but the OWNER must give 

the FIRM written notice within twenty (20) business days after the date 

on which the invoice is stamped as received which specifies the invoice 

deficiency and any action necessary to make the invoice complete and 

proper. 

 

Section 8 – Responsibilities 

The FIRM shall, under no circumstance, look to the OWNER to provide any labor 

or equipment for the FIRM.  The FIRM shall provide all of the labor and equipment 

necessary to perform the job or services contracted for at the expense of the FIRM.  

Property of any kind that may be on the premises, which are the site of the 

performance of this contract, during the performance of this Work Authorization, 

shall be at the sole risk of the FIRM. 

8.1 The OWNER hereby designates Joe Stephens as the OWNER's 

representative. 

8.2 In addition to applicable provisions of Section 2 of the AGREEMENT, 

the OWNER will: 

 Provide copies of existing drawings and equipment cut sheets if 

requested by FIRM 

 Pay for any required permit fees 

Agenda Page 176



  
      9 of 10 

The FIRM acknowledges and understands that it is an independent contractor in 

its relationship with the OWNER.  The FIRM hereby designates Nico Shaner as 

the FIRM’s representative.  

 

Section 9 – Insurance 

The FIRM shall provide certificate of insurance to the OWNER setting forth the 

type and amount of insurance carried by the FIRM and conforming to the minimum 

requirements set forth in the AGREEMENT.   

 

Section 10 – Level of Service 

The OWNER shall have the right to terminate said Agreement by giving the FIRM 

thirty (30) days written notice if the service that is being provided is not maintained 

at levels necessary to provide the required service.  The OWNER will determine in 

its sole judgment what constitutes a satisfactory level of service. 

 

Section 11 – Indemnification 

The Firm shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner and its officers and 

employees as set forth in Section 11 of the Agreement. 

 

  

Agenda Page 177



  
      10 of 10 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Work Authorization, consisting of  ten (10)  
pages and Attachment A has been caused fully executed on behalf of the FIRM 
by its duly authorized officer, and the OWNER has the same to be duly name and 
in its behalf, effective as of the date herein above written. 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Signature of Witness 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Printed name of Witness 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
_________________________________ 
Signature of President 
 
 
Dr. Marty Shank                                       .                          
Printed Name of President 
 
_________________________________ 
Date 

 Approved as to form and legality 
 
_________________________________ 
District Counsel 

 
State of Florida 
County of Palm Beach 
 
The foregoing instrument was 
acknowledged before me on this 

___ day of _________, 2019 by  
 
_________________________  
who is personally known to me OR 
produced ____________________ 
as identification. 
____________________________ 
Signature of Notary  

FIRM 
 
_____________________________________ 
Company 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Signature 
 
 
Troy Lyn, P.E., Vice President                          . 
Name and Title (typed or printed) 
 
August 19, 2019_____________________________
Date 

 

Agenda Page 178



 

  

Attachment A 

 

Budget Summary 
 

Agenda Page 179



9-5-0-11 [Shared] 

08/02/19 

10:36 AM 
1 Page  

Takeoff Worksheet  

08/02/2019 Report 

Coral Springs Improvement Dist 
151175 CSID Well 9 VFD & Electrical Improvements 

Assembly# Part# Description Unit Quantity Ext. Price

Job: 151175  CSID Well 9 VFD & Electrical Improvements

Bid Item: 1  General Conditions

General Conditions LOT 1.00 8,710.00

Bid Item Totals: 8,710.00

Bid Item: 2  Sitework

MOB/DEMOB LOT 1.00 1,340.00

Off Load VFD LOT 1.00 542.00

Punch Out Crew CR-D 1.00 1,472.71

Chain Link Fence LOT 1.00 4,306.75

Bid Item Totals: 7,661.46

Bid Item: 5  Misc Metals

Misc Metals & Fasteners LOT 1.00 2,461.00

Installation CR-D 1.00 1,793.67

Bid Item Totals: 4,254.67

Bid Item: 13  I&C

VFD LOT 1.00 44,298.00

Programming LOT 1.00 2,875.00

RTU Mods LOT 1.00 3,691.50

Pump Cable Seal & SS Fittings LOT 1.00 615.25

Installation CR-D 1.00 1,793.67

Bid Item Totals: 53,273.42

Bid Item: 16  Electrical

Electrical Sub LOT 1.00 11,200.00

Bid Item Totals: 11,200.00

Agenda Page 180



Takeoff Worksheet  

2 of 2 

Continued... 

08/02/19 

Page 
08/02/2019 
10:36 AM 

Report 9-5-0-11 [Shared] 

Assembly# Part# Description Unit Quantity Ext. Price

Bid Item: 18  Rental Equipment

Equipment to Transport & Install VFD LOT 1.00 2,153.38

Misc Tools & Equipment LOT 1.00 246.07

Bid Item Totals: 2,399.45

Bid Item: 25  Allowance

Allowance LOT 1.00 2,000.00

Bid Item Totals: 2,000.00

Bid Item: 50  Engineering/Record Drawing

Engineering LOT 1.00 7,500.00

Bid Item Totals: 7,500.00

Grand Totals: 96,999.00

Agenda Page 181



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11D 

Agenda Page 182



Agenda Page 183



Agenda Page 184



Agenda Page 185



Agenda Page 186



Agenda Page 187



Agenda Page 188



Agenda Page 189



Agenda Page 190



Agenda Page 191



Agenda Page 192



Agenda Page 193



Agenda Page 194



Agenda Page 195



Agenda Page 196



Agenda Page 197



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Twelfth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 198



Agenda Page 199



Agenda Page 200



Agenda Page 201



Agenda Page 202



Agenda Page 203



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Thirteenth 
 Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 204



  
 

 

  

 

RESOLUTION 2019-9 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT FORMALLY ADOPTING APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF 

PART III OF CHAPTER 112, FLORIDA STATUTES AS ITS CODE OF 

ETHICS 

 

 WHEREAS, the Coral Springs Improvement District (the ‘District’) is a special 

purpose, local government created pursuant to Chapter 298, Florida Statutes, and special act 

of the Florida Legislature; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District (the ‘Board) has determined that 

it is appropriate to formally adopt a Code of Ethics; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Board to adopt the applicable provisions of Part III 

of Chapter 112, Florida Statutes as its Code of Ethics; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT THAT: 

 

 Section 1. The Board hereby adopts the applicable provisions of Part III of 

Chapter 112, Florida Statutes,  as its Code of Ethics. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs 

Improvement District this 19th day of August, 2019. 

 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Dr. Martin Shank, President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kenneth Cassel, Assistant Secretary  

Agenda Page 205



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fourteenth 
 Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 206



 

RESOLUTION 2019-10 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CORAL 

SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT APPROVING ADOPTION AND 

EXECUTION OF THE STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT.  

 

 WHEREAS, the State of Florida Emergency Management Act, Chapter 252, 

authorizes the State and its political subdivisions to provide emergency aid and 

assistance in the event of a disaster or emergency; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the statutes also authorize the State to coordinate the provision of any 

equipment, services, or facilities owned or organized by the State or its political 

subdivisions for use in the affected area upon the request of the duly constituted authority 

of the area; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this Resolution authorizes the request, provision, and receipt of 

interjurisdictional mutual assistance in accordance with the Emergency Management Act, 

Chapter 252, among political subdivisions within the State; and  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by Coral Springs Improvement District that in 

order to maximize the prompt, full and effective use of resources of all participating 

governments in the event of an emergency or disaster we hereby adopt the Statewide 

Mutual Aid Agreement which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit 

“A”. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of Coral Springs 

Improvement District this 19th day of August, 2019. 

  

ATTEST: 

      CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

______________________________   

Secretary/Asst. Secretary 

I certify that the foregoing is an   ______________________________   

accurate copy of Resolution 2019-10 Chairman 

      Date: __________________________ 

 

Exhibit A: Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement 

 

Agenda Page 207



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fifteenth 

 Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 208



BSI Online offers full control and access over your backflow program. 
You always see customer service notes, letters sent from our office, 
tests entered and access to your data. Since our program is web 
based, you can access your program anytime, anywhere, and on any 
device ... in real-time!

PROGRAM START 
All existing backflow assemblies within your municipality will be added to the 

BSI Online database by BSI staff. We can typically get your program running in 

30-60 days from the time we receive records.

TESTER NOTIFICATION
BSI will notify the testing community, inform them of the new program 

procedures, and help them create a profile with their current license(s) and 

test gauge calibration(s).

CUSTOMER NOTIFICATION & ACCESS
BSI sends up to 2 letter notifications to water customers via USPS informing 

them of their testing requirements. Our customer portal includes a list of 

testers and an opt-in email notification once their test is submitted.

REPORT ENTRY
Test reports are entered by the tester on our website. Our test forms are set to 

State  standards. We also track tester credentials, ensuring each test submitted 

is accurate. The tester will pay a $12.95 filing fee per test report submitted.

b s i    n l i n e
Backflow Solutions, Inc.

PROGRAM SUMMARY

Questions? Contact Us! 
marketing@backflow.com  | 800.414.4990 | backflow.com

Agenda Page 209



CUSTOMER SERVICE 
Customer service inquires from water customers, testing companies, and the 

water purveyor are handled by our office. Our contact information is listed on 

all notification letters, allowing BSI to handle the clerical and administrative 

tasks for you. 

REPORTING 
We developed a comprehensive dashboard and report tab, allowing you to 

query data sets on your program. These queries are normally used for state/

regulatory reporting. 

SECURITY 
All water customers are protected by a customer confirmation number (CCN}, 

keeping their information private. All data is also backed up multiple times a 

day, on separate, off site servers. 

EXPERIENCED CONSULTING 
BSI Online can and will provide consulting / representation services on all 

backflow related issues or concerns for the duration of the agreement. 

TOTAL ANNUAL COST FOR 
BSI ONLINE: $495.00!

Questions? Contact Us! 
marketing@backflow.com  | 800.414.4990 | backflow.com

Agenda Page 210



 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT 
 
Effective this ______ day of ______________, 2019, Backflow Solutions, Inc., an Illinois corporation (“BSI”) and Coral Springs 
Improvement District of Florida (the “District”) hereby enter into an online subscription agreement whereby BSI will perform certain 
notification and data management functions on behalf of Coral Springs Improvement District.  The District will provide BSI with the 
information described hereafter and require that all companies that perform mandated backflow assemblies’ tests within the District 
be directed to the BSI website to enter the result of each Backflow Test performed within the District Jurisdiction. 
 

1. BSI Responsibilities. In addition to any other responsibilities set forth elsewhere in this agreement, BSI shall, through the use 
of its proprietary software, BSI Online. 
 

a. Maintain the secure Online Database to insure a functional backflow assembly tracking system that is easy to 
understand and use by licensed testers. BSI shall also maintain an internet website where testers shall input all data 
related to Backflow Tests they conduct within the District’s jurisdiction. 
 
b. Send up to two (2) notices to water customers that have Assemblies, advising them that their Assembly is due for 
testing. To facilitate the testing procedure, the Test Due Notice will include the identity of the water customer’s last 
Tester of record, together with all relevant contact information, if information is available to BSI. At the time the Test 
Due Notice is mailed to the water customer, BSI will also transmit a notice to the last Tester of record advising that Tester 
that the water customer’s assembly is due to be tested. The Tester Notification is designed to increase test compliance, 
thereby reducing enforcement costs incurred by The District. 

 

i. The “Test Due Notice” shall be mailed approximately 30 days prior to the scheduled test date. 
ii. The “Overdue Notice” shall be sent 1 day after the Test Date has passed if Backflow Test results have not been 

entered to the Online Data Base. The Overdue Notice will advise the water customer of its delinquent test status. 
 

c. BSI shall immediately transmit an electronic copy of each Test Report to the Municipality. 
 

2. Inducement. The District acknowledges and agrees that in order to induce BSI to provide the service contemplated by this 
Agreement, for each Test Report submitted to the Online Data Base the Data Entry Charge of $12.95 per report shall be paid by 
the tester prior to uploading the test data to the Online Data Base.     
 
3. Cost. The District shall pay BSI the sum of $495.00 per calendar year as the annual “Subscription Fee”. 
 
4. Termination.   If you wish to discontinue services provided by BSI we require 30 days written notice.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first set forth above. 
 

BACKFLOW SOLUTIONS, INC.,     
An Illinois corporation  a body politic and corporate 
 
By:   By:       
  
Name: Melissa Joyce  Name:       
Title: Sales & Marketing Associate  Title:       
Address:  Address: 
12609 South Laramie Ave.        
Alsip, Illinois 60803        

 

Agenda Page 211



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sixteenth 

 Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 212



  

 

Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc. 
Flygt Products 
 
15132 Park of Commerce Blvd./102 
Jupiter, FL 33478 
Tel (561) 848-1200 
Fax (561) 848-1299 

 

 

 

 

July 29, 2019 

 

 

Coral Springs Improvement District 

10300 NW 11th Manor  

Coral Springs, FL. 33071 

 

 

Subject:  FLYGT PRODUCTS – SALES & SERVICE 

 

 

Please be advised that Xylem Water Solutions USA Inc. owns the Flygt Corporation and 

is the only authorized vendor for Flygt Products and OEM Parts.  Xylem is also the only 

authorized service repair and warranty organization in the State of Florida; (East of the 

Apalachicola River).  Our staff is properly trained to provide you with original 

equipment, spare parts, repairs and warranty service. 

 

Thank you for your interest in Xylem Water Solutions USA Inc.  Please feel free to 

contact me if you have any questions regarding distribution or any other matter. 

 

Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Rick Reyes 

Area Sales Representative 

Flygt Products 

M: 561-699-4077 

SN:tn 

 

Agenda Page 213



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Seventeenth 

 Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 214



Agenda Page 215



Agenda Page 216



COMPANY: DATE: 7/26/2019

CONTACT: CUST. PO# QUOTE

ADDRESS: CUST. ACCT. #

CITY, ST, ZIP: FL PHONE # (954) 796-6608

EMAIL: QUOTE # PCD71911

SHIP TO: FOB: Statesville, NC

ADDRESS: PREPAID: (    )

CITY, ST, ZIP: COLLECT: (    )

QUANTITY LIST  PRICE FSA  PRICE

1 133,900$               85,696$              

(44,870)$            

40,826$              

746.88$              

32.00$                

53.12$                

40,826$              

2$                      

TAX -$                   

TOTAL 81,652$              

IF TAX EXEMPT, FURNISH TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE FOR IR FILES

MEMO:

KEYED DOOR LOCKS 

G190WCU-3A-T4F  TOTAL FSA PRICE ( 85,277 + 469 FREGIHT) 

DESCRIPTION

TOTAL G70WDO-3A -T4F FSA AMOUNT ( 40,427 +399 FREIGHT) 

DEDUCT AMOUNT FOR G70WDO-3A-T4F

CAMLOCKS

WHEEL CHOCKS

Curt Dwiggins 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

Curtd@fladistricts.com

Please note that the leadtime is subject to change.

Lead time: 6  weeks - 8  weeks .  

Using Florida Sheriffs Assoc Contract ( contract # FSA18-VEH16.0) 

* Availability subject to change.  Please confirm lead time before ordering.

TOTAL EACH

CUSTOMER SIGNATURE:

TOTAL QTY

1293 Glenway Drive
Statesville, NC 28625
Phone: 704-883-3500
Fax:  704-883-3770

www.doosanportablepower.com

Agenda Page 217

mailto:Curtd@fladistricts.com
mailto:Curtd@fladistricts.com
mailto:Curtd@fladistricts.com
mailto:Curtd@fladistricts.com
mailto:Curtd@fladistricts.com
mailto:Curtd@fladistricts.com


Agenda Page 218



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Eighteenth 

 Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 219



A copy of the Water and Sewer Standards will be available for review at the meeting. 
and is also available on the District website at http://www.csidfl.org/
about/5year_permit_index.html 

Agenda Page 220



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Nineteenth 

 Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 221



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 1 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

Proposal For 

Coral Springs Improvement District 

(URL: http://www.csidfl.org/)     Website Type: Medium 

 Website Accessibility for People with Disabilities as per Nondiscrimination 
requirements of Title II of the American Disabilities Act (ADA) & WCAG 

Date Version# Comments Author 

August 13, 2018 1.0 Updated “The Law, ADA and WCAG” section details VB Joshi, Kristen T 

January 10th, 2019 2.0 Updated conversion and support costs based on discussed scope VB Joshi 

February 25, 2019 2.2 Updated fee-simple pricing and human audit seal VB Joshi 

March 21, 2019 2.3 Added quarterly audit as per insurance requirement VB Joshi 

March 28, 2019 2.4 Updated Annual Maintenance price for ADA support only VB Joshi 

May 7, 2019 2.5 Updated for CDD specific info after conversing with CDD Manager VB Joshi 

May 20, 2019 2.6 Added Human Audit Details VB Joshi 

June 9, 2019 2.7 Added Hosting and Backup to Maintenance VB Joshi  

July 7, 2019 2.8 Updated maintenance - content upload cost added VB Joshi 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Your website gets 2 Compliance Seals 
VGlobalTech’s Technical Compliance Seal & Human Audit Compliance Seal* 

(* Human Audit Contract required) 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

VGlobalTech is the ADA, WCAG Compliance Expert, with over 250 ADA & WCAG compliant 
websites created (….and counting) to-date! We have partnered with a non-profit agency to 

conduct Human Audit and Certification Seal.  
Visit https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/ for details. 

 

Agenda Page 222

http://www.csidfl.org/
https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/


 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 2 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COPYRIGHT ©: This proposal and the contents within this document are solely 
created by VGlobalTech team for its customers and cannot be reproduced, copied, 

modified or distributed (including forwarding to other customers, competitors, 
web designers etc.) without the written consent of VGlobalTech. VGlobalTech 

company holds Intellectual Property details along with company software details 
that must not be shared with others without the written permission of the 

company. The proposal and software details are customized for the requesting 
customer and cannot be applied to any other customer / asset / solution. This 

document does not apply to a case if it is not exclusively sent to you by 
VGlobalTech upon request. 

Any violations are punishable under the law and shall be prosecuted.  

  

Agenda Page 223



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 3 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 

 

Table of Contents 

 

1.0 The Law .......................................................................................................................................................... 4 

2.0 ADA & WCAG Compliance – Introduction ........................................................................................ 6 

2.1 Common Problems and Solutions in Website Accessibility? ................................................ 7 

2.1.1 Problem: Images Without Text Equivalents ........................................................................... 7 

2.1.2 Problem: Documents Are Not Posted In an Accessible Format ....................................... 7 

2.1.3 Problem: Specifying Colors and Font Sizes ............................................................................. 7 

2.1.4 Problem: Videos and Other Multimedia Lack Accessible Features ................................ 7 

2.1.5 Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) ..................................................................... 8 

3.0 Pricing .......................................................................................................................................................... 10 

3.1 Existing Website Remediation / New Website Build: .......................................................... 10 

3.2 ADA Compliance Monthly Maintenance and Hosting ........................................................... 11 

3.3 Quarterly Technical and Human Audit ....................................................................................... 12 

 ................................................................................................................................................................................ 12 

4.0 Proposal Acceptance:............................................................................................................................. 14 

5.0 References: ................................................................................................................................................ 15 

 

 

  

Agenda Page 224



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 4 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 

1.0 The Law 
 

Source: http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-
0199/0189/Sections/0189.069.html 

189.069 Special districts; required reporting of information; web-based public access. — 

(1) Beginning on October 1, 2015, or by the end of the first full fiscal year after its creation, 
each special district shall maintain an official website containing the information required by this 
section. Each special district shall submit its official website address to the department. 

(a) Each independent special district shall maintain a separate website. 

(b) Each dependent special district shall be prominently displayed on the home page of the 
website of the local general-purpose government upon which it is dependent with a hyperlink to 
such webpages as are necessary to provide the information required by this section. A 
dependent special district may maintain a separate website providing the information required 
by this section. 

(2)(a) A special district shall post the following information, at a minimum, on the district’s 
official website: 

1. The full legal name of the special district. 

2. The public purpose of the special district. 

3. The name, official address, official e-mail address, and, if applicable, term and appointing 
authority for each member of the governing body of the special district. 

4. The fiscal year of the special district. 

5. The full text of the special district’s charter, the date of establishment, the establishing 
entity, and the statute or statutes under which the special district operates, if different from the 
statute or statutes under which the special district was established. Community development 
districts may reference chapter 190 as the uniform charter but must include information relating 
to any grant of special powers. 

6. The mailing address, e-mail address, telephone number, and website uniform resource 
locator of the special district. 

7. A description of the boundaries or service area of, and the services provided by, the special 
district. 

8. A listing of all taxes, fees, assessments, or charges imposed and collected by the special 
district, including the rates or amounts for the fiscal year and the statutory authority for the levy 

Agenda Page 225

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-0199/0189/Sections/0189.069.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-0199/0189/Sections/0189.069.html


 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 5 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

of the tax, fee, assessment, or charge. For purposes of this subparagraph, charges do not include 
patient charges by a hospital or other health care provider. 

9. The primary contact information for the special district for purposes of communication from 
the department. 

10. A code of ethics adopted by the special district, if applicable, and a hyperlink to generally 
applicable ethics provisions. 

11. The budget of the special district and any amendments thereto in accordance with 
s.189.016. 

12. The final, complete audit report for the most recent completed fiscal year and audit 
reports required by law or authorized by the governing body of the special district. 

13. A listing of its regularly scheduled public meetings as required by s. 189.015(1). 

14. The public facilities report, if applicable. 

15. The link to the Department of Financial Services’ website as set forth in s. 218.32(1)(g). 

16. At least 7 days before each meeting or workshop, the agenda of the event, along with any 
meeting materials available in an electronic format, excluding confidential and exempt 
information. The information must remain on the website for at least 1 year after the event. 

(b) The department’s website list of special districts in the state required under s. 189.061shall 
include a link for each special district that provides web-based access to the public for all 
information and documentation required for submission to the department pursuant to 
subsection  

 

 

 

  

Agenda Page 226

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0189/Sections/0189.016.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0189/Sections/0189.015.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0200-0299/0218/Sections/0218.32.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0189/Sections/0189.061.html


 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 6 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 

2.0 ADA & WCAG Compliance – Introduction 
 

Every individual must have equal access to information whether it is in person service or online. 
This is a general agreement and understanding of access.  

The Internet has dramatically changed the way state and local governments do business. Today, 
government agencies routinely make much more information about their programs, activities, 
and services available to the public by posting it on their websites. As a result, many people can 
easily access this information seven day a week, 24 hours a day. 

Many government services and activities are also provided on websites because the public is 
able to participate in them at any time of day and without the assistance of government 
personnel. Many government websites offer a low cost, quick, and convenient way of filing tax 
returns, paying bills, renewing licenses, signing up for programs, applying for permits or funding, 
submitting job applications, and performing a wide variety of other activities. 

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and, if the government entities receive federal 
funding, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 generally require that state and local governments 
provide qualified individuals with disabilities equal access to their programs, services, or 
activities unless doing so would fundamentally alter the nature of their programs, services, or 
activities or would impose an undue burden. One way to help meet these requirements is to 
ensure that government websites have accessible features for people with disabilities, using the 
simple steps described in this document. An agency with an inaccessible website may also meet 
its legal obligations by providing an alternative accessible way for citizens to use the programs or 
services, such as a staffed telephone information line. These alternatives, however, are unlikely 
to provide an equal degree of access in terms of hours of operation and the range of options and 
programs available. 

The World Wide Web Consortium (W3C) sets the main international standards for the World 
Wide Web and its accessibility.  W3C created the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG 
2.0 and 2.1) which are similar to Section 508, but on an international level.  WCAG 2.0 and 2.1 
requires specific techniques for compliance and is more current than Section 508.  

Many countries and international organizations require compliance with WCAG 2.0 and 2.1.  The 
guidelines are categorized into three levels of compliance:  A (must support), AA (should 
support), and AAA (may support).  Representatives from the accessibility community around the 
world participate in the evolution of these guidelines. 

Source: https://www.w3.org/WAI/standards-guidelines/wcag/ 

Visit http://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/ for more details, do a website 
compliance check on your website and to download a PDF proposal. 

 

Agenda Page 227

https://www.w3.org/WAI/standards-guidelines/wcag/
http://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/


 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 7 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

2.1 Common Problems and Solutions in Website Accessibility? 

2.1.1 Problem: Images Without Text Equivalents 
Solution: Add a Text Equivalent to Every Image 

Adding a line of simple HTML code to provide text for each image and graphic will enable a user 
with a vision disability to understand what it is. Add a type of HTML tag, such as an “alt” tag for 
brief amounts of text or a “longdesc” tag for large amounts, to each image and graphic on your 
agency’s website. 

The words in the tag should be more than a description. They should provide a text equivalent of 
the image. In other words, the tag should include the same meaningful information that other 
users obtain by looking at the image. In the example of the mayor’s picture, adding an “alt” tag 
with the words “Photograph of Mayor Jane Smith” provides a meaningful description. 

In some circumstances, longer and more detailed text will be necessary to convey the same 
meaningful information that other visitors to the website can see. For example, a map showing 
the locations of neighborhood branches of a city library needs a tag with much more information 
in text format. In that instance, where the map conveys the locations of several facilities, add a 
“longdesc” tag that includes a text equivalent description of each location shown on the map – 
e.g., “City Center Library, 433 N. Main Street, located on North Main Street between 4th Avenue 
and 5th Avenue.” 

2.1.2 Problem: Documents Are Not Posted In an Accessible Format 
Solution: Post Documents in a Text-Based Format 

Always provide documents in an alternative text-based format, such as HTML or RTF (Rich Text 
Format), in addition to PDF. Text-based formats are the most compatible with assistive 
technologies. 

2.1.3 Problem: Specifying Colors and Font Sizes 
Solution: Avoid Dictating Colors and Font Settings 

Websites should be designed so they can be viewed with the color and font sizes set in users’ 
web browsers and operating systems. Users with low vision must be able to specify the text and 
background colors as well as the font sizes needed to see webpage content. 

2.1.4 Problem: Videos and Other Multimedia Lack Accessible Features 
Solution: Include Audio Descriptions and Captions 

Videos need to incorporate features that make them accessible to everyone. Provide audio 
descriptions of images (including changes in setting, gestures, and other details) to make videos 
accessible to people who are blind or have low vision. Provide text captions synchronized with 
the video images to make videos and audio tracks accessible to people who are deaf or hard of 
hearing. 

 

Agenda Page 228



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 8 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

2.1.5 Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG)  
 

Understanding the Four Principles of Accessibility 

The guidelines and Success Criteria are organized around the following four principles, which lay 
the foundation necessary for anyone to access and use Web content. Anyone who wants to use 
the Web must have content that is: 

1. Perceivable - Information and user interface components must be presentable to users 
in ways they can perceive. 

o This means that users must be able to perceive the information being presented 
(it can't be invisible to all of their senses) 

2. Operable - User interface components and navigation must be operable. 

o This means that users must be able to operate the interface (the interface cannot 
require interaction that a user cannot perform) 

3. Understandable - Information and the operation of user interface must be 
understandable. 

o This means that users must be able to understand the information as well as the 
operation of the user interface (the content or operation cannot be beyond their 
understanding) 

4. Robust - Content must be robust enough that it can be interpreted reliably by a wide 
variety of user agents, including assistive technologies. 

o This means that users must be able to access the content as technologies advance 
(as technologies and user agents evolve, the content should remain accessible) 

If any of these are not true, users with disabilities will not be able to use the 
Web. 

 

Under each of the principles are guidelines and Success Criteria that help to address these 
principles for people with disabilities. There are many general usability guidelines that make 
content more usable by all people, including those with disabilities. However, in WCAG 2.1, we 
only include those guidelines that address problems particular to people with disabilities. This 
includes issues that block access or interfere with access to the Web more severely for people 
with disabilities. 

 

See reference section at the end of this document for more information and websites for ADA, 
Usability and other important compliance issues and solutions.  

Agenda Page 229



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 9 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 

VGlobalTech development and business management team shall study 
these compliance guidelines and with our technical capabilities apply 
these to make your website accessible, compatible and fully functional 
for all people, including those with disabilities.  

Visit https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/ for details of our 
compliance process and expertise in this area. 

Please see References section for several resources on compliance. 

  

Agenda Page 230

https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/


 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 10 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 

3.0 Pricing  
 

Website Complexity: Medium Level Websites 
 
VGlobalTech team shall complete the following critical tasks for client website. 
All costs below are per website / CDD: 
 

3.1 Existing Website Remediation / New Website Build: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Task 

1.  Remediate existing website / Build new website from start as per Florida 
Statute Chapter 189 requirements. Ensure ADA & WCAG compliance 
requirements. Customer shall provide all documents and content required. ALL 
webpages on the website. Create accessibility document, code review, html 
updates, plugins / security updates required for ADA and WCAG compliance 

2.  Cross-Device Check (Website needs to appear as per ADA standards on Mobile 
Phones, Tablets, Desktops etc.). Braille Readers, Other assistance technology 
compatibility 

3.  ADA Standards application (as per Section 1 above). ADA.gov, Web Content 
Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 

4.  PDF Documents conversion (to Text, HTML etc.) as needed for ADA Compliance 
/ Reader Compliance (up to 2 years of documents shall be converted) 

5.  Create a webpage showing websites ADA Compliance efforts 
6.  Create customized footer with VGlobalTech’s ADA Compliance Seal (valid for 1 

year only) 

7.  Web Design Total: $4000/- (one time) 

Agenda Page 231



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 11 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 
 

3.2 ADA Compliance Monthly Maintenance and Hosting  
 
Maintenance contract starts after initial conversion is completed (It is critical to maintain 
compliance as websites get updated): 
 
The Annual Maintenance DOES NOT include the quarterly audits proposed in the next section.  
Maintenance contract is required for VGlobalTech’s proprietary document conversion 
software (PDF to RTF) to be used that allows faster, accurate and batch processing for 
document conversion.  

 

 Task 

1.  Full content upload support to regularly keep site updated (includes all documents, audit reports, 
agendas, meeting minutes, events etc). Ensure content is in ADA and WCAG compliance for the 
entire site. Section 508 stipulations (applicable to CDD) and FIA /eGIS insurance requirements are 
met. These points are very critical to maintain a fully compliant website at all times. Update 
turnaround time – less than 24 hrs from customer sending the content and documents to be 
updated to VGT team. 

2.  PDF Documents conversion (to Text, HTML etc) as needed (new documents during the 
maintenance year only) for ADA Compliance / Reader Compliance. VGlobalTech’s proprietary 
batch conversion software shall be used by our team for faster batch-conversion processing as 
long as the contract is valid (big time saver that creates compliant documents that can be 
uploaded to the website). There is no limit on how many documents or pages per documents 
can be converted per month using VGlobalTech’s software. If Auto conversion fails, VGlobalTech 
team shall perform manual OCR and conversion within 24 hrs.  

3.  Update footer with VGlobalTech’s ADA Compliance Seal (extended for current 
year) 

4.  Website hosting and backups – Premium hosting, unlimited file space, bandwidth, 
fast website response, regular automated backups, SSL certificates for secure site 
access (https protocol), 99.9% website uptime: 

 Total Monthly Maintenance with full content 
upload, document conversion and Hosting:  
$275 / month 
 
*support beyond 8 hrs. / month / CDD shall be billed at $55 / hr. separately (VGlobalTech team 
shall be responsible to track and report hours exceeded, if any) 
***Monthly maintenance must be paid before the 10th of every month 

Agenda Page 232



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 12 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

3.3 Quarterly Technical and Human Audit 
 

This audit is as per the Florida Insurance Alliance guidelines. Please check with your 
insurance agency for specific requirements. Read more here: https://vglobaltech.com/wp-
content/uploads/2019/03/FIA_ADA_Guidelines-2019-2020.pdf 

VGlobalTech has partnered with a local agency for the visually impaired – LightHouse 
Works. LightHouse has developed a unique program for digital accessibility that is run by 
visually impaired personnel that are highly skilled in human auditing of websites and 
software as per the section 508 stipulations. Read more about our partnership here: 
https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/ 

Together we are now able to provide not one but two compliance seals for all our 
customers: 

1. Digital Asset Technical Compliance Seal: 
 
 

 
  

 

2. Human Audit Seal:   

 
 
 

 

 

Cost for Audit:  $300 / per audit 

• Can be paid yearly for all 4 audits ($1200) or can be paid per audit every quarter $300 
• Seals renewed every quarter 
• Audits are conducted by VGlobalTech and LightHouse Agency together 
• Full Audit reports shall be provided 

 

VGlobalTech in-house technical team shall remediate / test the 
website / software for ADA, WCAG compliance. VGlobalTech’s 
technical design & development team is fully aware of the 
Americans with Disability Act (ADA), Web Content 
Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG), Section 508 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and overall the design principles of 
a professional, accessible, functional and responsive web 
design. The entire team has taken dedicated time and efforts to 
learn these design principles first hand. Our purpose is clear 
– Universal, Creative Web design that works for everyone, 
everywhere and every time! 

LightHouse Works’ visually impaired personnel shall actually 
test the website for compliance as per the section 508 and ADA 
requirements. The VGlobalTech technical team shall remediate 
any points discovered by LightHouse team and send the site for 
re-certification. Upon satisfactory completion LightHouse shall 
provide the Human Audit Seal that will be specific to the site and 
the VGlobalTech team shall put the seal on the site. This is an 
added layer of true Human Audit testing that provides full ADA 
compliance.  

Agenda Page 233

https://vglobaltech.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/FIA_ADA_Guidelines-2019-2020.pdf
https://vglobaltech.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/FIA_ADA_Guidelines-2019-2020.pdf
https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/


 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 13 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

This proposal includes following points, stipulations terms and conditions: 

*(1) conference call or in person meetings per month with client to review metrics, results and 
monthly recaps *unless otherwise noted  

* email and phone communication 

*Anything out of the scope of work in the above proposal will be addressed and client will be 
immediately notified. After notification of additional work, a subsequent quote will be provided 
to cover that work. 

*Client is responsible to adhering to timelines as far as information required to complete the 
task is concerned. If timelines are not adhered to and exceed 15 business days past the current 
marketing months, last day, all work will end. A new month with new allocated costs will be 
presented for future work to commence. No refunds and owed work will be due unless 
otherwise agreed upon. An Invoice will be provided once signature approval of this project 
proposal. Payments will be made to VGLOBALTECH 

*Client is responsible for verifying quality of work, providing feedback, verifying that compliance 
has been met as required. VGlobalTech team shall not be responsible for any legal ramifications 
arising from work not done as per external agencies / organizations / associations needs if 
proper feedback is not provided by the customer. VGlobalTech’s work will be in best faith but 
cannot guarantee all compliance / legal needs since we are not the final authority in the ADA or 
WCAG compliance area. VGlobalTech shall not be liable for any legal ramifications arising from 
compliance issues and cannot be held responsible for any legal or other lawsuits.  

Refund Policy: The client may halt work and request for a refund within seven days of the date 
of signing this services agreement by mailing a signed letter to the main address listed on 
www.VGlobalTech.com website. If client requests a refund within seven days of the date of 
signing their agreement, they shall be liable to pay for all work completed and will be refunded 
the remaining balance of the initial payment if billable work has not exceeded a charge that 
would be greater than client’s initial payment. If client requests a refund after the seven days 
from the date of the signing of the agreement client is liable to pay for all work completed plus 
an additional 25% of any remaining balance that may still be due. Once line item projects are 
complete no refunds will be issued. Confidentiality: All information between client and service 
provider  inclusive of technical and business information relating to proprietary ideas, 
patentable ideas and/or trade secrets, existing and/or contemplated products and services, 
research and development, production, costs, profit and margin information, finances and 
financial projections, customers, clients, marketing, and current or future business plans and 
models, regardless of whether such information is designated as “Confidential Information” at 
the time of its disclosure and will be treated as such and with absolute confidentiality and will 
not be shared or used, which will be maintained at all times.  The client is not allowed to disclose 
their price with any third parties.  Doing so is in breach of this agreement.  All information 
development will be shared and proprietary information and property between client and 
service providers. 

Agenda Page 234

http://www.vglobaltech.com/


 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 14 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

4.0 Proposal Acceptance:  
 
The VGlobalTech proposed solution and terms have been accepted by the customer and the 
VGlobalTech can proceed with the project. All payments shall be made according to this agreement. 
 

Select Proper Option Below, Sign and Date, Return to contact@vglobaltech.com: 
 

Option1: Website only 
Section 3.1: One time (website conversion and compliance cost): 

 
 

Option2: Website and Monthly Maintenance w/ Hosting 
Section 3.1: One time (website conversion and compliance cost)   

+   
 Section 3.2 ADA Compliance Monthly Maintenance and Hosting  

 

  Option3: Website and Quarterly Audits 
Section 3.1: One time (website conversion and compliance cost)   

+   
 Section 3.3 Quarterly Technical and Human Audit Testing 

 

  Option4: Website, Monthly Maintenance w/ Hosting and 
Quarterly Audits 

Section 3.1: One time (website conversion and compliance cost)   

+   
Section 3.2 ADA Compliance Monthly Maintenance and Hosting  

+   
  Section 3.3 Quarterly Technical and Human Audit Testing 

 
 
 
Signatures: 
 
 
     

For Customer                                        Date 

 
 
 
 
VB Joshi          

For VGlobalTech          Date 
 

Agenda Page 235



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 15 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

5.0 References:  
 

ADA Best Practices Tool Kit for State and Local Governments: 
https://www.ada.gov/pcatoolkit/chap5toolkit.htm 

 

U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Disability Rights Section 
https://www.ada.gov/websites2.htm 

 

Web design Standards: https://www.w3schools.com/ 

 

Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) https://www.w3.org/TR/WCAG21/ 

 

VGlobalTech Web Content Accessibility Implementation and Checkpoints: 
http://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/ 

 

 

Agenda Page 236

https://www.ada.gov/pcatoolkit/chap5toolkit.htm
https://www.ada.gov/websites2.htm
https://www.w3schools.com/
https://www.w3.org/TR/WCAG21/
http://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Twentieth 

 Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 237



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20A. 
  

Agenda Page 238



Notice of Meetings 
Coral Springs Improvement District 

 
 The Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement District will hold 
their meetings for Fiscal Year 2020 in the District Offices, 10300 N. W. 11 Manor, Coral 

Springs, Florida at 4:00 p.m. on the third Monday of each month unless otherwise  
specified below: 
 
  
 October 21, 2019 
 November 18, 2019 
 December 16, 2019  
 January 27, 2020 (Fourth Monday)  
 February 24, 2020 (Fourth Monday) 
 March 16, 2020 
 April 20, 2020 
 May 18, 2020 
 June 15, 2020 
 July 20, 2020 
 August 17, 2020 
 September 21, 2020 
 

In addition to the regular meeting schedule, one or more Supervisors may attend 
weekly staff meetings/workshops every Tuesday morning at 9:00 a.m. at the District 
Offices. 
 

There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will participate by 
telephone.  Meetings may be continued to a date and time certain, which will be 
announced at the meeting.  Any interested person can attend the meeting at the above 
location and be fully informed of the discussions taking place.    A scheduled meeting 
may be cancelled by the BOS based on the business needs of the District. 
 
 Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a 
disability or physical impairment should contact the management firm, Inframark, at 
(954) 603-0033 at least two calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or 
speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at 711 for aid in contacting the 
District Office. 
 

Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by 
the Board with respect to any matter considered at the 
meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a 
verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the 
testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be 
based. 
 
 Kenneth Cassel 
 District Manager 

Agenda Page 239



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20B. 
  

Agenda Page 240



 
Globaltech, Inc. 

CSID Engineer’s Report 

August 19, 2019 

 

 

PROJECTS UNDER CONTRACT 

 

WA #131- HSP 7 Modifications – Closeout 

• Approved by Board – 1/22/18 

• Pump installed 5/31/19 

• Project complete. 

 

WA #133 - Facility Arc-Flash Study – In Progress  

• Revised Draft Report submitted 10/30 – under review. 

• Conditional Assessment submitted 11/16 – under review. 

• Vulnerability Assessment delivered 11/28. 

• Delivered Final Report 5/08/19 

• Globaltech to prepare an amendment to Final Report addressing 4 off site wells 

• Completion mid-August 

 

WA#137 – High Service Pump 1 & 2 Improvement – in Progress 

• Approved by Board – 3/21/19 

• Preparing submittals for valves 

• HSP 1 removed 5/31 and picked up by Hudson Pump on 6/07/19. 

• Pump 1 scheduled to be returned and installed mid-September. 

• Completion date – 3/01/20 

 

WA #139 – Generator Diesel Fuel Line Replacement – In Progress 

• Approved by Board – 4/26/18 

• Permit application submitted week of 2/09/19. 

• Permit issued 5/08/19 

• Project ready to commence – waiting on Cypress Construction to mobilize. 

• Completion Date 8/30/19 

 

WA #140 – Dual Zone Monitor Well Construction – Closeout 

• Approved by Board – 6/18/18 

• MW-4 completed 6/06/19. 

• YBI abandonment of monitoring tubes 7/17/19 

• Completion date 7/19/19. 

• Addressing punch list items 
 

WA #141 – Plant D Repair – In Progress  

• Approved by Board – 4/26/18 

• Demolition completed 8/15/18  

• Mechanical equipment (rake arm, center column, center cage, and drive) delivered & installed. 

• Mechanical startup 7/20/19 

• Waiting to apply Xypex coating to clarifier floor followed by two-week cure. 

• Startup / completion date - 8/30/19. 
 

Agenda Page 241



 
Globaltech, Inc. 

CSID Engineer’s Report 

August 19, 2019 

 

 

PROJECTES UNDER CONTRACT (Cont.) 

 

 

WA #143 – Site 12 Canal Bank Restoration – Closeout 

• Approved by Board 6/18/18 

• Restoration work completed 11/02/18 

• Home owner provided contract with independent fencing contractor.  Payment will be made upon 

submission of permit application. 

• Complete – August 2019 

 

WA #149 – High Service Pump Building Isolation Valve Replacements – Closeout 

• Approved by Board 10/16/18 

• Project Complete 

• Amendment for additional work presented on 8/19/19 agenda 

  

WA#151 – ORP Analyzer – On 11/26/18 Board – Closeout 

• Approved by Board 11/26/18 

• Startup performed 6/28/19 

• Amendment returning allowance on 8/19/19 agenda 

 

WA#152 – Deep Injection Well Operating Permits – Closeout 

• Approved by Board 11/26/18 

• Application was submitted January 25, 2019  

• Draft Permit issued 6/12/19 

• Advertising the intent to issue permit.  

• Final permit will be issued in August 

• Completion date – 8/16/19 

 

WA#156 – Production Well 8 Redevelopment – Closeout 

• Well returned to service by 7/05/19 

• Project Complete 

• Addressing restoration activities with Parks Department 

 

WA#158 – 4MG Ground Storage Tank Repair and Improvements – Closeout 

• Approved by Board – 3/21/19 

• Final inspection to occur by 6/21/19. 

• Project Complete 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 242



 

Globaltech, Inc. 

CSID Engineer’s Report 

August 19, 2019 

 
 

 

Work Authorizations Under Development 
 

WA#149 Amendment 1 – HSP Building Valve Replacement – 8/19/19 Agenda 

WA#151 Amendment 1 – ORP Analyzer – 8/19/19 Agenda 

WA#159 – High Service Pump 7 Low Pressure Auto-start – Under development 

WA#162 – Production Well 9 VFD and Electrical Improvements – 8/19/19 Agenda 

WA#163 – Production Well 5 Redevelopment – 8/19/19 Agenda 

WA#164 – High Service Pump Building Drainage Improvements – Under development 

 

 

Agenda Page 243



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20C. 
  

Agenda Page 244



Coral Springs Improvement District

Utility Billing Work ORDERS

2019 Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 45 36 25 32 20 26 46 230

Mis-Reads 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 3

Meter Calibration Tests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Coral Springs Improvement District

Utility Billing Work ORDERS

2018 Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 42 33 27 44 45 27 34 28 29 36 31 31 407

Mis-Reads 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 6

Meter Calibration Tests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Coral Springs Improvement District

Utility Billing Work ORDERS

2017 Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 24 27 25 38 35 34 26 30 33 29 15 23 339

Mis-Reads 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 4

Meter Calibration Tests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Agenda Page 245



Page 1 of 3 
 

                                                                               

                         August Report to the Board of Supervisors for the Water Plant 

                               Report Includes Updates through 8/7/2019 

 

Piggyback opportunity for well maintenance with AMPS 

The Martin County contract that we are currently piggybacking off of for well maintenance with AMPS expires 

this month. They have a new contract in place with the City of Sunrise which was awarded on 2/12/19 and is 

good for 3 years with two optional one year renewals.  This Sunrise contract includes a chemical free method 

for well maintenance. This will eliminate the injection of chlorine into our wellfield on a regular basis which is 

a huge plus as membranes cannot tolerate chlorine. The difference in cost is very minimal. If approved we 

would like to continue piggybacking off of this contract as long as it is renewed. 

Well 5 rehab (WA 163) 

 AMPS and Connect Consulting were finally able to complete a static and dynamic video on this well. The 

report came back stating that the well is producing sand, as expected and needs to be airlifted and jetted 

(rehab). A work authorization in the amount of $94,500 is being presented at this meeting for this work. As 

opposed to placing 80 hours’ worth of development in the work authorization we placed 40 of that in the 

allowance so that they have to come back to us at the end of 40 and explain why another 40 is necessary. The 

allowance also includes $7,500 for potential unexpected expenses. 

Automatic Transfer Switch Failure 

During our routine monthly generator run in June it was noticed that the transfer switch did not transfer over 

to the generator as it should have. The FPL breaker in our ATS is malfunctioning and cannot be repaired or 

simply replaced due to its age. A new ATS panel has been ordered through Globaltech and will be here around 

the week of 8/12. It will take 3-5 days to install. The total for this replacement is $147,000. In the meantime 

we have rented a temporary diesel engine driven high service pump which will automatically start up and 

pump water out to the District during a low pressure scenario. Due to how loud the engine is when running we 

requested a sound barrier be installed around it since there are a few homes nearby. This has already ran on 

several occasions and performed as expected. The total cost for this setup is $56,000. 

 

Agenda Page 246



Page 2 of 3 
 

 

Four million gallon tank repairs (WA 158) 

 Crom has finished all of the contracted work on this tank as well as the safety railing on the other two. In our 

opinion this project is complete however Crom has requested additional funding from Globaltech for work 

they feel was beyond their scope. We disagree and are going back and forth on this now. 

Underground valve replacement amendment (WA 149) 

Work authorization 149, which was for the replacement of several underground valves on the North side of 

the high service pump building, has been completed. Due to having to split this into two phases in order to 

avoid a precautionary boil water notice there were a few additional expenses required including re 

mobilizations, an additional line stop, and some additional fittings and labor.  

Installation of VFD on well 9 (WA 162) 

 We have asked Globaltech to prepare a work authorization to be presented at this month’s meeting 

requesting the installation of a variable frequency drive on well 9. Now that the specific capacity is significantly 

higher following the recent rehab of this well we have much more flexibility with flowrates on this well which 

will provide greater operational control of our raw water inflow. This will also help with electrical demand as 

the motor will be able to be turned down. The proposed WA is in the amount of $96,999. 

Four million gallon tank repairs (WA 158) 

 Crom has finished all of the contracted work on this tank as well as the safety railing on the other two. In our 

opinion this project is complete however Crom has requested additional funding from Globaltech for work 

they feel was beyond their scope. We disagree and are going back and forth on this now. 

High service pump 7 replacement (WA 131) 

Globaltech and the pump supplier installed the new pump on 5/31. The pump is performing as expected 

although the motor did experience a small oil leak and we are obtaining quotes now for the repair. After 

evaluating the age of the motor (26yrs old) it is looking like it makes more sense to replace it than to repair it 

and add the auto start components that we were looking at and budgeted for. This is a key tool in avoiding 

precautionary boil water notices. 

Well 8 rehabilitation (WA 156)  

  Globaltech, Connect Consulting, and Centerline drilling completed this rehab project on 6/24. The 

recommended clearance samples were collected and the well was placed back in service. They were able to 

achieve 20 gpm/ft of drawdown (specific capacity) from this well. It was yielding 12gpm/ft before they started. 

This is a significant improvement and according to Globaltech and the Connect the well will produce 750 gpm 

without issue like our others.  

 

Agenda Page 247



Page 3 of 3 
 

Projects with Globaltech 

 Replacement of high service pump building automatic transfer switch- Underway 

 Well 5 rehab- WA 163 being presented at August meeting 

 High service pump #7 auto start at low pressure- WA 159 to be presented in September 

 Replacement of high service pumps 1&2’s impellers- WA approved in March. Underway 

 Underground diesel tank transfer lines upgrade- WA 139 approved in April 18. Underway 

 ORP probe installation- WA 152 approved in November. Completed 

 Feed motor bearing replacement – WA 161 approved in April. Completed 

 4 million gallon storage tank repairs- WA 158 approved in March. Completed 

 Well 8 rehabilitation- WA 156 approved in December. Amendment approved in February. Completed 

 Relocation of post treatment injection points- Avoided 

 Mitigation of draining issues near HSP building- WA to be presented in September 

 Installation of a VFD on well 9- WA 162 to be presented in August 

  Water Loss 

   The graph below compares the water loss % in 2018 vs 2019.  So far this year we are at an average of 13.29% 

loss and the goal is to be below 10% by the end of December. At the end of July last year we were at an 

average of 16.01% so we are still on track to be in much better shape than last year.         

 

Agenda Page 248



MONTH DIST. BILLED %  

Dec-18 118.06 94.35 20.08

Jan-19 116.96 101.365 13.33

Feb-19 103.74 95.393 8.05

Mar-19 116.01 93.65 19.27

Apr-19 116.89 95.82 18.03

May-19 118.08 98.83 16.30

Jun-19 114.89 102.56 10.73

Jul-19 114.95 97.37 15.29

Aug-19 #DIV/0!

Sep-19 #DIV/0!

Oct-19 #DIV/0!

Nov-19 #DIV/0!

Dec-19 #DIV/0!

2019 Avg. 114.50 97.86 13.29 Total % loss -1.25% (unbilled auth. Consumption)

2019 Tot. 801.52 684.99

2018 Tot. 1417.21 1173.56 15.94 Total % loss -1.25% (unbilled auth. Consumption)

C.S.I.D. DISTRIBUTION-BILLED-LOSS %

118.06 116.96

103.74

116.01 116.89 118.08 114.89 114.95

94.4
101.4

95.4 93.7 95.8 98.8 102.6
97.4

20.08
13.33

8.05
19.27 18.03 16.30

10.73 15.29

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19

DISTRIBUTION - BILLED - LOSS %
DIST. BILLED %

Agenda Page 249



Wastewater Plant Operations Report for July 2019 

 

 

Monthly Influent average flow for July was 4.628 MGD. 

Monthly R.O. Concentrate average flow was 0.682 MGD. 

Monthly DW Injection average flow was 5.765 MGD. 

 

Finished 3rd Quarter Sour Test 

Working on Annual DW Injection Report. 

Corrective and preventive maintenance in all plants. 

 

Ongoing Projects. 

WA #141 – Plant D Repairs 

After pouring the floor in D Plant small cracks developed throughout the floor of 

the tank.  Globaltech decided to apply a two part epoxy coating to the floor to 

cover and seal the cracks. On day two of applying the epoxy heavy rains lifted and 

peeled the coating they had just applied.  Globaltech scrapped the epoxy that 

lifted and peeled and is waiting for drier days to reapply and finish the rest.  

Globaltech is also working on a platform for ladder entry into the tank. This 

platform was built incorrectly and is being redesigned.  We still have a 2 week dry 

time once epoxy coating is finished before we can test the construction and fill 

the tank. 

WA #140 – Monitoring Well #4 Construction 

Monitoring Well #4 UMZ and LMZ has been completed but still waiting on 

labeling, testing results and O&M manuals from Globaltech. Latest word from Rick 

Olson is two weeks out. Nico from Global Tech still needs to come back and 

complete the punch out list on the SCADA. A new pump was installed in the LMZ 

of MW #3. But today it developed a problem with water flowing out of an 

Agenda Page 250



electrical conduit line so it is now out of service. David Mcnabb  has been notified 

and will be getting Globaltech to respond.  

 

 

   

Agenda Page 251



  

                           

Coral Springs Improvement District 

Drainage Report August 19, 2019 

Board of Supervisors Meeting 

 

 Current canal levels averages are 6.89 NGVD 29 in the east basin and 6.90 NGVD 29 in the west basin 

as of this report.  

Total rainfall recorded for July was 6.35 inches. 

Rainfall recorded for August is 3.56  inches at the time of this report 

Rainfall recorded to date for the year is 30.01  inches at the time of this report 

 

 Field spray activities are on schedule, despite of being down 1 employee due to injury. 

Dept. Manager is assisting in field activities to ensure not to fall far behind normal operations. 

 

 Mowing is on schedule, pictures are captured during each activity   

 

 

 

Agenda Page 252



 

 

 

 

 

6.62 6.63

6.79

6.45
6.38

6.03

5.93

6.76
6.67

6.21

5.86

6.12

6.73

6.89

7.13

6.94

6.8

6.93
6.87

6.74
6.69

7.6

7.36

6.86

6.4

6.62

7

6.9

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST

R

A

I

N

F

A

L

L

I

N

C

H

E

S

C

A

N

A

L

L

E

V

E

L

I

N

N

G

V

D

2

9

F

E

E

T

AVG. BASIN LEVEL AND TOTAL RAINFALL

RAIN EAST BASIN WEST BASIN 6.5 NGVD 29 PERMIT LEVEL

Agenda Page 253



 

Iguana Management: July 2018 through July 2019 

 

 

 

12
14

10
8

5

11
9

4

28

25 24 24

17

32
4

0 1 0 0 0 0 1 2 1 0

3

0

5

8 9

14 13

3

0

5

32

39

54

37

12

0
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

July August September October November December Jan FEB March April May JUNE JULY AUGUST

Iguana's controlled

East Sta West Sta Admin Bldg

Agenda Page 254



 

Water Distribution and Wastewater Collection 

Department Report 

8-19-19 board Meeting  

 

 

Prepared by: Curtis Dwiggins  

 

 There were 9 repaired water service breaks in the month of July.  

  

  Trio Development Corp has completed the rehabilitation project for lift station 14. The station is 

back online and operating as expected. 

 

   The Field Department is requesting the purchase of two 56KW portable generators from the 

FSA cooperative purchasing program. The lowest bidder who offers a product that meets our 

specification is Doosan. It is included in the agenda for your consideration  

 

   Garber has updated their expected completion date of our Sierra 2500 Utility truck. at the time 

this report was written, the expected completion date was 8/9/19, So I will have more info at 

the meeting  

 

   The field department has made good progress in our valve monument program, with very little 

interruption or inconvenience to our customers.  

 

   Also for your consideration is a program that deals directly with managing backflow prevention 

and control programs. Backflow Solutions Inc. (BSI) is an online, cloud based service which 

enables municipalities to better control their programs with the services they provide. The cost 

is minimal to the District, but is fee based (currently $12.95) to the customer, or the certifying 

plumber directly, as a fee for filing test reports annually.  

 

   I have included in this report the service break trend. It shows significant reduction in water 

breaks, post service replacement program.  

 

 

Agenda Page 255



0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Ju
l-

1
5

Se
p

-1
5

N
o

v-
1

5

Ja
n

-1
6

M
a

r-
1

6

M
a

y-
1

6

Ju
l-

1
6

Se
p

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6

Ja
n

-1
7

M
a

r-
1

7

M
a

y-
1

7

Ju
l-

1
7

Se
p

-1
7

N
o

v-
1

7

Ja
n

-1
8

M
a

r-
1

8

M
a

y-
1

8

Ju
l-

1
8

Se
p

-1
8

N
o

v-
1

8

Ja
n

-1
9

M
a

r-
1

9

M
a

y-
1

9

Ju
l-

1
9

Monthly water service breaks 

Agenda Page 256



 

Maintenance Department Report (Pedro V.)  

              Water Department: 

• In coordination with Global Tech and WP to so solve the transfer switch problem in HSP 

Building. The last week we were with FPL personnel in site.  

• In coordination with Delta Control to solve the problem of the diesel transfer pumps 

electrical panel, #1 WP main generator. 

• The 250 HP process motor #1 the bearings was modified and is in normal operation.  

• Waiting for parts to repair the process room cooling fan system. 

• Normal PM in equipment.  

              Wastewater Department: 

• PM and lubrication in different equipment and blowers oil replacement. 

• Works in the field, painting, etc. 

• Works in the belt press feed pumps and solving some problems in the drain lines.  

• Troubleshooting in different electrical equipment and solving the situations.  

• Working with the 404 VFD cooling fans. We try to repair the old fans, but one of them 

has to be replaced, new spare parts are expected to arrive soon. 

 

Field Department: 

 

• Works with the lake pump. 

 

              Drainage Department 

• Helping Shawn with the chemical exhaust fans replacement. The work was completed, 

old equipment was replaced by new cheaper chemical resistant equipment, was 

necessary electrical and mechanical modification to be installed. 

Agenda Page 257


	Board Letter
	2nd Order of Business
	6.17.19 LO Minutes
	6.17.19 Regular Meeting Minutes
	3rd - Resolution 2019-4, Certifying Results of LO Election
	5th - July 2019 Financials
	6A - Permit 2019-2
	6B - Permit 2019-4
	7th - Proposed FY 2020 GF Budget
	7A - Resolutin 2019-6, Adopting the FY 2020 GF Budget
	7B - Resolution 2019-7, Levying Non Ad Valorem Assessments
	8th - Resolution 2019-8, Approving Proposed FY 2020 W&S Budget and Setting Public Hearing 
	Proposed FY 2020 W&S Budget
	9th - Encroachment Agreement 8137 NW 2nd Manor
	10A - Automatic Transfer Switch Evaluation and Installation
	10B - Emergency Installation of HSP System
	11A - WA#149.1
	11B - WA#152.1
	11C - WA #162
	11D - WA#163
	12th - Wellfield Maintenance Contract with AMPS
	13th - Resolution 2019-9, Adopting Code of Ethics
	14th - Resolution 2019-10, Approving Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement
	15th - BSI Online Proposal
	16th - Xylem Water Solutions
	17th - Doosan G70 Portable Generators
	18th - Ratification of Water and Sewer Standards
	19th - V GlobalTech Proposal
	20A - Proposed Meeting Schedule for FY 2020
	20B - Engineer's Report
	20C - Department Reports
	Utility Billing Work Orders
	Water Department Report
	Wastewater Department Report
	Stormwater Department Report
	Field Department Report
	Maintenance Department Report



